


 

 

 



 

 a  

Group Management Report 2020 ........................................................................................ 1

Consolidated Financial Statements 

1. Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2020 ................................................... 4

2. Consolidated Income Statement for the Period  
from 1 January to 31 December 2020 ........................................................................... 5

3. Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Period  
from 1 January to 31 December 2020 ........................................................................... 5

4. Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity ............................................................... 6

5. Consolidated Cash Flow Statement .............................................................................. 7

6. Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year  
from 1 January to 31 December 2020 ........................................................................... 8

 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Non-current Assets.......................................... 28

 List of Shareholdings ................................................................................................. 44

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT .................................................................................. 1







2 
Vier Gas Transport GmbH  Group Management Report 2020 

Contents 
Introduction ....................................................................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Overall economic and industry-related conditions ............................................................................................................................................. 3 

Overall economic development .....................................................................................................................................................................3

Primary energy consumption in Germany ..................................................................................................................................................... 3 
Energy policy developments in Europe ......................................................................................................................................................... 3 
Energy policy developments in Germany ...................................................................................................................................................... 4 

Business performance ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 4 

National regulations ......................................................................................................................................................................................4

Network development plans and market area conversion ............................................................................................................................. 6 
Technology.................................................................................................................................................................................................... 7 

Analysis of net assets, financial position and results of operations ................................................................................................................... 9 

Investments ................................................................................................................................................................................................... 9 
Financing ...................................................................................................................................................................................................... 9 
Report on economic position ....................................................................................................................................................................... 10 

Non-financial statement in accordance with section 315b HGB ...................................................................................................................... 11 

Environment, climate and energy ................................................................................................................................................................ 11 
Employees .................................................................................................................................................................................................. 12 
Social engagement ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 12 
Compliance ................................................................................................................................................................................................. 13 

Features of the internal control system ........................................................................................................................................................... 13 

Report on opportunities and risks ................................................................................................................................................................... 13 

Description of the opportunity and risk management process ..................................................................................................................... 14 
Significant risks ........................................................................................................................................................................................... 14 
Further risks ................................................................................................................................................................................................ 14 
Disclosures in accordance with section 315, para. 2 no. 1 HGB ................................................................................................................. 16 
Opportunities ............................................................................................................................................................................................... 16 
Overall assessment of opportunity and risk situation ..................................................................................................................................16

Expected development ................................................................................................................................................................................... 16 

 

 



3 
 

Introduction 

The Vier Gas Transport Group is made up of Vier Gas Transport 

GmbH (VGT), Essen, as the parent company, and its major sub-

sidiary Open Grid Europe GmbH (OGE), Essen, with its equity 

investments.

VGT largely performs a holding company function for OGE. This 

Group management report therefore mainly refers to the business 

activities of OGE, which is active in the field of gas transport logis-

tics. 

length of approximately 12,000 km. As a network operator, OGE is 

subject to supervision by the Federal Network Agency (BNetzA), 

the German regulatory authority, and is bound by both European 

Union (EU) and German statutory regulations. 

(including determining quantities and billing) in the markets areas 

of NetConnect Germany GmbH & Co. KG (NCG) and GASPOOL 

Balancing Services GmbH (GASPOOL), operating, maintaining 

and repairing the pipeline system as well as controlling and moni-

toring the network. Furthermore, the core activities include the 

efficient further development of the gas transmission pipeline 

networks in line with demand on the basis of nationwide network 

development plans. 

Vier Gas Services GmbH & Co. KG (VGS), Essen, is the sole 

shareholder of VGT. 

Overall economic and industry-related conditions 

Overal l  economic development  

In its annual report, the German Council of Economic Experts 

expects Germany's real gross domestic product to have declined 

by 5.1 % in 2020. The reason for this is the Corona pandemic 

(COVID-19). This has led to one of the most severe recessions of 

the post-war period. After a sharp slump of 9.8 % in the second 

quarter, there was initially strong recovery over the summer. The 

third quarter saw an overall increase of 8.5 %. At the end of the 

year, gross domestic product remained virtually unchanged, only 

rising slightly by 0.1 %. 

Owing to the sharp rise in the number of infections, the economic 

situation remains uncertain. Future performance will depend on 

how the pandemic can be contained and how the global economy 

develops. 

Governments quickly introduced extensive monetary and fiscal 

measures that have provided support for the economy. At the 

European level, the Recovery Fund can increase the resilience 

and competitiveness of the European Economic Area through 

targeted investments and reforms in the EU member states. In 

particular, this fund is to promote economic growth and jobs, and 

boost efforts to meet the climate and digitalisation challenges 

ahead. 

Primary energy consumption in Germany 

According to the provisional calculations of the Working Group on 

Energy Balances (AGEB), energy consumption in Germany fell by 

8.7 % in 2020 compared with the previous year, reaching a historic 

low of 11,691 petajoules (PJ) or 398.8 million tonnes of hard coal 

equivalent (mtce). 

The macroeconomic and sectoral effects of the Corona pandemic 

were primarily responsible for the significant decline in consump-

tion. Other contr butory factors were long-term trends such as a 

further improvement in energy efficiency, substitutions in the ener-

gy mix towards more renewable energies, and the comparatively 

mild weather. By contrast, the noticeable drop in energy prices 

over the course of the year had the effect of increasing consump-

tion slightly. 

Natural gas consumption decreased by 3.4 % in 2020 to 3,105 PJ 

or 106.0 mtce. The main reason for the fall in consumption was 

reduced demand for natural gas in the industrial and commercial, 

trade and services sectors as a result of the Corona pandemic. By 

contrast, more natural gas was used for power and heat genera-

tion. A slight increase in the amount of gas used by private house-

holds is expected despite comparatively mild temperatures. 

The shares of the various energies in the national energy mix 

shifted further in 2020 compared with the previous year: there was 

an overall decline in the use of fossil fuels leading to a further 

decrease in the carbon intensity of energy supply in Germany. 

However, a broad energy mix remains a characteristic feature of 

German energy supply. Oil and gas account for a good 60 % of 

German energy consumption. Hard coal and lignite together make 

up just under 16 % of the energy consumed. Renewables in-

creased their share to nearly 17 %. 

Energy policy developments in Europe 

A key element of the European Green Deal was the draft EU 

climate law presented by the EU Commission in March 2020, 

which will enshrine the EU's objective of greenhouse gas neutrality 

by 2050 in law. According to the draft, the EU Commission is to 

review progress in the member states at regular intervals and be 

able to specify binding reduction trajectories for the concrete 

achievement of the long-term goal. The draft initially left the emis-

sions reduction target for the year 2030 open. Following an impact 

assessment, the EU Commission supplemented its draft in Sep-

tember 2020 to include an emissions reduction target for 2030 of 

minus 55 % (compared with 1990). The heads of government of 

the member states also agreed to this target at an EU Council 

meeting in December. However, in its position statement, the EU 

Parliament calls for a target of reducing emissions by at least 60 % 

by 2030 and an interim target for the year 2040. 

With regard to financial market regulation, the Taxonomy Regula-

tion, which defines criteria for sustainable investment, came into 

force in July 2020. The regulation provides the framework for a 

green classification system in the EU and was supplemented in 
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November 2020 by the EU Commission draft of a Delegated Act 

which contains technical screening criteria for the environmental 

and climate protection objectives. In the field of energy infrastruc-

ture, the Taxonomy Regulation stipulates that investments in the 

construction of new hydrogen infrastructure and in the conversion 

or retrofitting of existing gas infrastructure for the transport of 

hydrogen should generally be classified as sustainable financial 

activities.

The EU Commission's legislative proposals relating specifically to 

the gas market are expected in the course of 2021. The EU Com-

mission announced that part of its annual work plan for the fourth 

quarter of 2021 would be a revision of the Third Internal Market 

Package Gas for regulating a competitive and decarbonised gas 

market. As far as content is concerned, the EU Commission will, in 

all likelihood, be guided by the strategy papers it published in 

2020. In July 2020, the EU Commission not only presented an 

energy system integration strategy but also a European hydrogen 

strategy, which sets a policy target of at least 40 GW of electrolysis 

capacity in the EU by 2030. This was followed in October 2020 by 

a further strategy paper on the identification and reduction of me-

thane emissions in the EU. 

Energy policy developments in Germany  

The German government presented its National Hydrogen Strate-

gy on 10 June 2020. With the National Hydrogen Strategy, the 

German government aims to create a coherent action framework 

for the future production, transport, use and processing of hydro-

gen and thus for relevant innovations and investments. The Na-

tional Hydrogen Strategy defines the steps it believes are neces-

sary to help achieve the climate targets, create new value chains 

for the German economy and further develop international cooper-

ation on energy policy. When the National Hydrogen Strategy is 

implemented, it will also be a matter of making the necessary 

adjustments to the legal and regulatory framework for hydrogen so 

that the switch to hydrogen transport can begin as soon as possi-

ble. The implementation and further development of the National 

Hydrogen Strategy are being overseen and steered by the Nation-

al Hydrogen Council. The Council is made up of 26 high-ranking 

experts from the fields of science, business and society. The 

members were appointed by the Federal Cabinet in June 2020 and 

between them have expertise in the areas of hydrogen generation, 

research and innovation, the decarbonisation of industry, transport, 

buildings and heating, infrastructure, international partnerships and 

climate and sustainability. OGE is represented through the ap-

pointment of Dr Jörg Bergmann as a member of the National 

Hydrogen Council. 

In addition, an amendment to the Renewable Energy Act (EEG) 

was passed by the German Bundestag in 2020. This defines how 

the individual technologies (onshore and offshore wind energy, 

photovoltaics & biomass) will be expanded over the next few years 

so that the target set by the German government of a 65 per cent 

share of renewable energies in the electricity supply by 2030 can 

be achieved. One element of the law that is also important for the 

gas industry is the exemption of hydrogen electrolysers from the 

EEG surcharge. In future, electrolysers can be exempted from the 

EEG surcharge either by extending the special equalisation 

scheme (section 64a EEG) or by a completely new entitlement to 

full exemption (section 69b EEG). This is an important step to-

wards providing incentives for hydrogen production in Germany. 

In addition, the German government already indicated that a fur-

ther amendment to the EEG will follow in 2021 to bring German 

law into line with the new EU climate target (see above). 

In connection with the development of an infrastructure for hydro-

gen transport based on the existing gas transmission networks, the 

Federal Ministry for Economic Affairs and Energy presented a key-

issues paper in December 2020 discussing transitional regulation 

for hydrogen networks. This legislative process was initiated on 

22 January 2021, with the publication of a draft bill by the Federal 

Ministry of Economic Affairs and Energy regarding an amendment 

to the Energy Industry Act (EnWG). The Federal Cabinet approved 

this draft bill on 10 February 2021. In essence, it regulates approv-

al matters for hydrogen networks, thereby creating some degree of 

legal certainty for new hydrogen pipelines to be built in the future 

and for gas pipelines to be converted. The draft bill also sets a 

framework for optimal regulation of hydrogen networks, with ac-

companying regulations on, among other things, accounting and 

book-keeping, connection and access to hydrogen networks, and 

the responsibilities of the BNetzA. With the exception of approval-

related matters, the draft bill introduces separate cost treatment for 

hydrogen and natural gas networks. However, it does not contain 

any clear rules on cost regulation so it is currently not poss ble to 

perform a concrete economic efficiency calculation for investments 

in regulated hydrogen networks on this basis. It therefore falls 

short of expectations since financing is one of the questions that 

remains unanswered and so there is no investment security. The 

Federal Ministry of Economic Affairs and Energy has announced 

that it is working on an additional network fee ordinance to set out 

the details of cost regulation and a funding regulation, which, 

together with the proposed amendment to the law, should create 

the necessary framework. 

Business performance 

National regulations 

By decision of 13 June 2018, OGE received the final notification on 

the setting of the calendar-year revenue cap of the third regulatory 

period (2018-2022) in accordance with section 29, para. 1 EnWG 

in conjunction with section 32, para. 1, nos. 1, 5 and 11 and sec-

tion 4, para. 2 of the German Incentive Regulation Ordinance 

(ARegV). The annual balance of the regulatory account is not part 

of the decision on the revenue cap and is decided in separate 

administrative proceedings. By decision of 12 June 2020, the 

BNetzA approved the regulatory account balance for the year 
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2017. The procedure for the 2018 and 2019 balances has not yet 

been completed. 

In accordance with section 9, para. 3 ARegV, from the third regula-

tory period onwards the BNetzA must determine the sectoral 

productivity factor (Xgen) in each case before the start of the 

regulatory period using state-of-the-art methods. By decision of 

21 February 2018, the Xgen factor was set at 0.49 % for gas net-

work operators. Alongside a large number of other gas network 

operators, OGE lodged an appeal against this stipulation with the 

3rd Antitrust Senate of the Higher Regional Court of Düsseldorf. 

On 10 July 2019, the Higher Regional Court of Düsseldorf set 

aside the stipulation of the Xgen in separate proceedings. The 

BNetzA lodged an appeal with the Federal Court of Justice (BGH) 

against this ruling. The Federal Court of Justice held a hearing in 

three test cases on 10 November 2020. In its ruling of 

26 January 2021, the Federal Court of Justice came to the conclu-

sion that within the scope of its decision-making authority the 

BNetzA had determined the Xgen amount for the 3rd regulatory 

period appropriately.  

In connection with the Network Fee Modernisation Law and the 

discussion surrounding the refinancing of the offshore linkup costs 

for transmission system operators, changes in regulatory law 

entered into force with effect from 22 March 2019. The changes 

also relate to the investment measures (IMA) instrument which 

was established in the ARegV and which regulates the remunera-

tion of electricity and gas transmission system operators for ex-

pansion and restructuring investments. For example, the flat rate 

operating cost allowances set so far are now to be remunerated 

more on the basis of actual costs and differentiated according to 

the date of commissioning of an investment. Against this back-

ground, in 2019 the BNetzA reviewed the allowances for natural 

gas compressors and gas pressure regulating and metering sys-

tems originally set as flat rates in 2011 and revised them on 

11 December 2019. Within the framework of the IMA approval, the 

BNetzA now provides for an operating cost allowance of 1.5 % of 

the acquisition costs for natural gas compressors and 1.7 % for 

gas pressure regulating and metering systems as from 

1 January 2020. 

As required in the Incentive Regulation Ordinance in its amended 

version of 22 March 2019, on 3 December 2020 the BNetzA set 

the operating cost allowances applicable for the period up to the 

commissioning of assets (excluding compressors and gas pres-

sure regulating and metering stations) that are part of an approved 

investment measure. From 1 January 2021, the BNetzA no longer 

provides for an operating cost allowance for the relevant assets. It 

set an annual allowance of 0.2 % of the acquisition costs for in-

vestment measures which, as line measures, require connections 

to the existing pipeline network and can thus lead to disruptions 

and standstills there. 

Furthermore, by decision of 15 December 2020, the BNetzA 

amended the existing stipulation on the calculation of capital and 

operating costs from approved investment measures. With effect 

from 1 January 2021, the stipulation now provides for a calculation 

of the imputed trade tax adjusted in line with current rulings on 

capital cost balancing as well as greater transparency in the event 

of actual debt financing. 

On 21 May 2019, the Federal Ministry for Economic Affairs and 

Energy (BMWi) launched the "Industry Dialogue on the Further 

Development of Incentive Regulation". The aim of the ta ks was to 

identify where specific adjustments to the legal framework were 

necessary in order to accelerate expansion of the energy network. 

In addition to the regulatory treatment of bottleneck management 

costs (electricity grid operators), the core topics included funda-

mental questions on the two financing instruments, "investment 

measure (IMA)" and "capital cost balancing". This industry dia-

logue finished with a report in June 2020. The BMWi has not yet 

taken a final position on whether and to what extent an adjustment 

of incentive regulation will be sought, but is still considering har-

monisation of the regulatory framework with regard to the "capital 

cost balancing" regulations already applicable to distribution sys-

tem operators. 

On 14 January 2021, the chief public prosecutor (General-

staatsanwalt) delivered the concluding arguments in the European 

Commission's infringement action against Germany (case 

C-718/18) before the European Court of Justice (ECJ), which has 

been ongoing since November 2018. In summary, it was argued 

that the independence of the national regulatory authority (BNetzA) 

is unlawfully restricted by national laws (EnWG) and ordinances 

(including ARegV, Gas Network Fee Ordinance (GasNEV)) in 

violation of European law. In essence, the ordinances contain 

excessively detailed regulations and requirements for determining 

network fees. If the ECJ agrees with the chief public prosecutor's 

assessment, the legislator's scope for deciding on the future regu-

latory framework could be significantly restricted and the regulatory 

authority's autonomous responsibility significantly extended. At 

present, it is not possible to predict the specific impact on the legal 

structure of network fee regulation. A decision by the ECJ is ex-

pected in mid-2021. 

In addition to this possible specific adjustment to the legal frame-

work, the BNetzA is expected to start the procedures setting the 

return on equity and the Xgen for the fourth regulatory period 

(2023-2027) is expected in 2021. Both parameters have a direct 

influence on OGE's revenue cap from 2023 onwards. At the begin-

ning of November 2020, the BNetzA invited tenders for the expert 

report on the determination of the risk allowances for gas and 

electricity network operators for the fourth regulatory period. The 

scheduled date for completion of the expert report is mid-2021. 

The report is to serve as the basis for setting the return on equity. 

This is expected at the end of 2021. 

In August 2019, the BNetzA initiated a procedure for setting addi-

tional requirements for the preparation and auditing of annual 

financial statements and activity reports of vertically integrated 
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energy supply companies and legally independent network opera-

tors pursuant to section 6b EnWG. The authority made its final 

stipulation by decision of 25 November 2019. The changes are to 

be applied for the first time to annual financial statements with a 

reporting date from 30 September 2020. Accordingly, OGE will 

submit a corresponding supplementary certificate on the annual 

audit of the financial statements to the BNetzA by 31 August 2021 

at the latest. OGE lodged an appeal against this stipulation with 

the 3rd Antitrust Senate of the Higher Regional Court of Düsseldorf 

on 17 January 2020, which, however, does not have a suspensive 

effect. The hearing is scheduled for 9 June 2021. 

In preparation for determining the revenue cap for the fourth regu-

latory period, the BNetzA initiated consultations for specifying the 

data to be collected for determining the cost level as well as the 

efficiency comparison for transmission system operators. In ac-

cordance with the consultation of 9 December 2020, the cost data 

required for the BNetzA's cost review procedure pursuant to sec-

tion 6, para. 1 ARegV must be submitted by 1 June 2021. In addi-

tion to the costs for the financial year 2020 (base year), these also 

include corresponding data for the previous years 2016 to 2019. In 

accordance with the stipulation of 20 January 2021, the load, 

structure and sales volume data needed for performing the effi-

ciency comparison are to be submitted to the BNetzA by 

30 April 2021. 

Network development plans and market area  
conversion 

Both European and national regulations oblige network operators 

to draw up plans which determine future network expansion re-

quirements and set out the plans for network expansion. 

In line with the stipulations of the EnWG, natural gas transmission 

system operators have to jointly submit to the regulatory authority 

a ten-year network development plan in each even calendar year 

and, in each uneven calendar year, a joint implementation report 

on the network development plan last published. 

On 17 June 2019, the transmission system operators published 

the scenario framework for the Gas Network Development Plan 

2020-2030 for consultation. One focus of the scenario framework 

infrastructure. In addition to biomethane, hydrogen and synthetic 

methane are, for the first time, to be included in the modelling as 

green gases. The merger planned for 1 October 2021 of the two 

German market areas with their managing companies, NCG and 

GASPOOL, also plays a central role in the scenario framework. 

This move is to create one joint German market area "Trading Hub 

Europe" as a central starting point. With regard to the development 

of future gas demand, the scenario framework has been systemat-

ically developed further and therefore takes into account current 

climate protection scenarios and the latest deliberations on the 

phasing out of coal. After consultation and discussion with market 

participants, the revised scenario framework was submitted to the 

BNetzA on 16 August 2019 and confirmed by the BNetzA on 

5 December 2019 with amendments and conditions, e.g. the obli-

gation to calculate two modelling variants (the basic variant natural 

gas and the green gas variant natural gas and hydrogen). On the 

basis of the BNetzA's confirmation of the scenario framework, the 

transmission system operators carried out the modelling of the 

Gas Network Development Plan 2020-2030 and published the 

consultation document on the Gas Network Development Plan 

2020 2030 on 4 May 2020. A public consultation was held from 

4 May to 29 May 2020 to provide the public and the market with an 

opportunity to comment. A web-based workshop was also held on 

13 May 2020 to explain and discuss the Gas Network Develop-

ment Plan 2020 2030. After the end of the consultation period, the 

comments received were evaluated and the outcome of the con-

sultation was incorporated into the draft Gas Network Develop-

ment Plan 2020 2030, which was submitted to the BNetzA on 

1 July 2020. 

The natural gas transmission system operators' proposal for net-

work expansion is based on the green gas variant. They propose 

that the gas transmission system should be extended by 1,746 km 

and 405 MW of new compressor capacity should be installed. In 

total, this results in a required investment volume of some 

 8.5 billion by 2030. The share of the investment volume required 

 662.0 million. 

OGE's share of the proposed investment volume for the Gas 

Network Development Plan 2020  1.8 billion. 

This sum also includes investment projects already under con-

struction. OGE's share of the investment volume earmarked for 

 212.0 million. 

The additional measures compared with the previous Gas Network 

Development Plan are, for the most part, connected with the sup-

ply of Baden-Württemberg, the link-up of liquefied natural gas 

(LNG) plants, the necessary expansion measures for green gases 

and the supply security of the Netherlands. 

The possible costs for market-based instruments in the context of 

the future market area merger are compared for the first time with 

the costs of a potential expansion of the network in the Gas Net-

work Development Plan 2020 2030. 51,000 individual load cases 

per calculation year are used for the bottleneck analysis in the 

Germany-wide market area Trading Hub Europe. In the analysed 

scenarios with different characteristics of forecast market shifts, 

there are significant variations of the different sources Russia, 

Norway and LNG. From the perspective of the gas transmission 

system operators, the overall comparatively low cost of using 

market-based instruments does not provide sufficient justification 

for alternative network expansion. Therefore, this was not taken 

into consideration in the network expansion proposal contained in 

the Gas Network Development Plan 2020 2030. 

The BNetzA is required to hear all actual and potential network 

users once again regarding the draft Gas Network Development 

Plan 2020 2030 submitted by the gas transmission system opera-
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tors and to publish the result. This hearing took place in the period 

from 10 July to 28 August 2020. The BNetzA has yet to publish the 

results. It can then demand that changes be made to the Gas 

Network Development Plan, which the gas transmission system 

operators must incorporate within three months. 

In a separate chapter, the Gas Network Development Plan 

2020-2030 goes into detail on the challenges of the L-gas to H-gas 

conversion plans. For example, one part of the German gas mar-

ket is supplied with L-gas that originates solely from German and 

Dutch deposits. The other deposits available in Germany supply 

H-gas. For technical and cal bration law reasons, H-gas and L-gas 

are transported in separate systems. Due to the steady decline in 

German and Dutch L-gas production, the conversion of the rele-

vant areas to H-gas is an important element for maintaining gas 

supply security. The changeover to H-gas means that all gas 

appliances in the relevant area have to be adjusted to the higher 

calorific value of H-gas. In accordance with section 19a EnWG, the 

gas transmission system operators spread the cost of this over the 

whole of Germany by means of a separate levy.  

As part of the plans to switch over from L-gas to H-gas, L-gas 

balances, both in terms of supply/demand volumes as well as in 

terms of capacity, are established in the Gas Network Develop-

ment Plan 2020-2030. In these supply/demand volume and ca-

pacity balances, forecasts for the development of demand and 

supply are compared taking into consideration the changeover 

from L-gas to H-gas and declining L-gas production. Through 

-Gas Market Con-

version" set up by the Dutch Ministry of Economic Affairs, it was 

ensured that the decision taken on 21 September 2020 to reduce 

annual L-gas production in the Netherlands to 8.1 billion m³ is in 

line with the plan assumptions on L-gas demand in Germany made 

in the Gas Network Development Plan 2020-2030. This also ap-

plies to the announced end of L-gas production in the Netherlands 

from 2022. 

A major element in the switch-over from L-gas to H-gas is the 

expansion of the existing gas transmission system in order to 

permit both the linking up of the areas currently supplied with 

L-gas to H-gas sources and a step-by-step changeover. In 2020, 

the changeover process at OGE affected 11 distribution network 

operators and 13 directly connected industrial customers in Hesse 

and North Rhine-Westphalia. The upstream natural gas supply of 

larger cities such as Gießen, Wetzlar and parts of Bergisch-

Gladbach was successfully changed over from L-gas to H-gas. 

Although there were some delays during the year due to the Coro-

na pandemic, all areas which OGE had scheduled for changeover 

in 2020 were actually changed over in 2020. According to current 

plans, conversion to H-gas at OGE will be completed by 2029. 

Technology 

In 2020, OGE performed various measures to upgrade and ex-

pand its technical infrastructure. These included work carried out 

by Mittel-Europäische-Gasleitungsgesellschaft mbH & Co. KG 

(MEGAL), Essen, Trans Europa Naturgas Pipeline GmbH & Co. 

KG (TENP), Essen, Mittelrheinische Erdgastransportleitungsge-

sellschaft mbH (METG), Essen, Nordrheinische Erdgastransport-

leitungsgesellschaft mbH & Co. KG (NETG), Dortmund and 

ZEELINK GmbH & Co. KG (ZEELINK), Essen, which are integrat-

ed in the OGE network. 

One of the projects of MEGAL, a project company of OGE and 

GRTgaz Deutschland GmbH, Berlin, is the construction of the 

Rimpar compressor station on the basis of the Gas Network De-

velopment Plan with a compressor capacity of 3 x 11 MW. The 

structural and civil engineering works and pipe construction work 

progressed to schedule. Completion of commissioning is sched-

uled for the end of 2023. 

On the basis of the results of extensive investigations, in Novem-

ber 2019 TENP, a project company of OGE and Fluxys TENP 

GmbH, Düsseldorf, decided that the parts of the TENP I Boxberg-

to-Wal bach pipeline section sheathed in Polyken would not be put 

back into service again. To ensure supply security, the projects for 

the construction of the new pipelines running from Mitte brunn to 

Schwanheim (38 km, DN 1000) and Hügelheim to Tannenkirchen 

(16 km, DN 900) as well as the construction of the necessary 

connecting pipelines to the TENP II pipeline were included in the 

Network Development Plan 2018. Commissioning is scheduled for 

December 2024. To reflect higher demand for capacity at the 

Wallbach exit point, the pipeline construction projects Schwanheim 

to Elchesheim (41 km, DN 1000), Schwarzach to Eckartsweier 

(29 km, DN 1000) and Tannenkirch to Hüsingen (16 km, DN 900) 

were included in the draft document for the Gas Network Devel-

opment Plan 2020-2030 with commissioning in December 2025. 

The engineering and approval work for these new construction 

projects is proceeding according to plan. On the basis of the re-

sults of further examinations of TENP I, one roughly 28 km section 

in the Schwanheim-to-Elchesheim expansion section was put into 

operation again. 

In a joint project with Fluxys TENP, a deodorisation plant was 

completed and put into service in Schwörstadt, near the Swiss 

border. The plant removes the strong-smelling substance THT 

(tetrahydrothiophene) from gas coming from Switzerland, thus 

opening up additional transport routes from Italy or France to 

Germany via Switzerland.  

The electric motor-driven compressor unit, which was commis-

sioned at the OGE Krummhörn compressor station at the end of 

2019, was run on surplus wind energy for the first time in February 

2020. It is thus making an active contribution to sector linking in 

Germany. As far as the next expansion stage of the Krummhörn 

compressor station, the addition of a further gas turbine-driven 
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compressor unit (15 MW), is concerned, construction is virtually 

completed. Commissioning will be finished by the end of 2022. 

The OGE compressor station in Emsbüren was extended by a 

compressor unit (8 MW) driven by an electric motor. The unit was 

commissioned in December after successful completion of the 

600 hour test. 

The Network Development Plan pipeline project Heiden to Dorsten 

(approx. 18 km, DN 500/600) is in the official planning approval 

procedure. 

Planning approval was given for the Network Development Plan 

pipeline project Erftstadt to Euskirchen (EUSAL, approx. 18.5 km, 

DN 400) in August. Preparatory work such as explosive ordnance 

clearance and archaeological investigations has begun. 

With preparations for the construction of a pipeline from Voigtslach 

to Paffrath (approx. 24 km, DN 900), advancing well, construction 

commenced in mid-2020. The pipeline is a Network Development 

Plan project of NETG, a project company of OGE and Thyssengas 

GmbH, Dortmund. Commissioning is scheduled for the end of 

2022. 

The ZEELINK project  a joint project of Thyssengas GmbH, 

Dortmund, and OGE  is proceeding to plan. It consists of two 

compressor stations in Würselen (3 x 13 MW) und Legden 

(2 x 15 MW), a gas transmission pipeline running from 

Lichtenbusch to Legden (approx. 215 km, DN 1000) as well as four 

gas pressure regulating and metering stations and one gas pres-

sure regulating station. All the ZEELINK pipeline was laid in 2019 

and 2020 so the final work, such as the recultivation of the route, 

can now be continued. As part of the construction of the Würselen 

compressor station, the leak tests of the pipelines and equipment 

were successfully completed so filling with gas can start at the 

beginning of 2021. The pipeline and the Würselen compressor 

station will be commissioned in spring 2021, as scheduled. The 

application documents for the planning approval procedure for the 

compressor station in Legden were submitted to the district gov-

ernment in Münster. Due to a ruling made in the meantime by the 

European Court of Justice (ECJ), there are extended requirements 

for water protection. For this reason, approval will be delayed for 

about six months and therefore the planned commissioning of the 

station will also be delayed to mid-2024. This does, however, not 

jeopardise market area conversion. The permit application docu-

ments revised in light of the ECJ ruling have been submitted to the 

authority and will be made public shortly. 

As part of the switchover from L-gas to H-gas running until 2029, 

OGE is planning and constructing gas pressure regulating and 

metering stations and gas pipelines to connect the former L-gas 

areas to the H-gas pipelines. In total, 7 gas pressure regulating 

and metering stations, three pipelines and four block-valve stations 

have now been put into operation. The remaining expansion work 

for the switchover from L-gas to H-gas laid down in the Gas Net-

work Development Plan 2020-2030 is to be completed by 2026. 

39 process gas chromatographs (PGC) in the OGE network have 

been retrofitted for the measurement of hydrogen. The PGCs 

serve as reference measuring points for the gas composition 

reconstruction system and make it possible to measure admixtures 

of up to 20 % hydrogen in the OGE network in future. 

As part of condition-based maintenance, old pipelines in the OGE 

network are being rehabilitated, particularly in North Rhine-

Westphalia. In addition, numerous existing pipelines were re-

routed in order to adapt to infrastructure expansions in Germany. 

Occupational health and safety is a matter of highest priority in the 

VGT Group. The Group aims to continually reduce the number of 

accidents and other harmful effects on the health of its employees 

and employees of partner companies over the long term as well as 

to constantly improve work ergonomics and occupational health. 

The targets set for the 2020 financial year were achieved. The 

number of work-related accidents, measured in terms of 

TRIFcomb1, is continuing to fall on a long-term average and taking 

account of the proportion of jobs with an increased risk (construc-

tion work). This indicator fell slightly to 4.7 (previous year: 4.9) 

despite the fact that construction work increased sharply compared 

with the previous year. The external auditors of the occupational 

health and safety management system again noted a further im-

provement in the safety culture. Activities in the field of Health, 

Safety and Environment (HSE) sub-contractor management were 

stepped up, particularly in the major new build projects. 

                                                                 
1 TRIFcomb = Total number of work-related accidents (accidents at work 

and on the way to and from work) of own employees and sub-contractors' 
employees with medical treatment and/or with lost time per one million 
hours worked.  
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This results in a net debt-asset ratio of 75.7 % (previous year: 

76.3 %; detailed breakdown in the Notes to the consolidated finan-

cial statements). Of the external funds, 8.0 % relate to provisions, 

80.2 % to liabilities and 11.8 % to deferred tax liabilities. Financial 

liabili  3,267.8 million 

 4,015.6 million). The majority of these liabilities 

 2,981.2  3,728.6 million) relate to bonds 

issued by VGT. Furthermore, miscellaneous financial liabilities 

resulted primarily from liabilities of the pipeline companies MEGAL 

and TENP to banks. 

 106.2 million as at 31 December 2020, 

 905.0 million compared with the previous year. 

This significant change results in particular from the repayment of 

a bond by VGT. 

In the 2020 financial year, the Group generated cash flow from 

 445.2 million (previous year: 

 406.1 million). Cash flow from investing activities totalled 

 87.5 mill  -956.6 million). 

 -957.7 million 

 746.7 million) and mainly comprised the repay-

 750.0 million. 

In summary, the Management believes that the Group's net as-

sets, financial position and results of operations for the financial 

year 2020 are stable and secure, as forecast in the previous year. 

Non-financial statement in accordance with 
section 315b HGB3 

All aspects of section 289c para. 2 HGB are descr bed in the non-

financial statement. The Group does not pursue a concept in 

relation to any of the aspects concerned, as this is not necessary 

for an understanding of the Group's business performance, results 

of operations and position, nor is it necessary for an understanding 

of the impact of the Group's activities on the non-financial aspects. 

Environment, cl imate and energy  

The VGT Group attaches particular importance to environmental 

protection, climate protection and energy efficiency. Meeting and 

further developing health, safety and environment goals, while 

taking the requirements of occupational health and safety, 

environmental protection and energy efficiency into consideration, 

are major prerequisites for reliable, safe and efficient gas 

transportation and for the provision of high-quality services for our 

customers. It goes without saying that in so doing the Group 

observes the applicable statutory regulations, technical 

rules/standards and contractual agreements.

Occupational health and safety and environmental protection 

include an obligation to put processes in place that minimise the 

risks to health and safety as far as possible for all employees and 

keep the detrimental effects of our business activities on the 

                                                                 
3 In accordance with section 317, para. 2 HGB, the contents and subject 

matter of this chapter was not part of the audit by the financial statement 
auditors. 

environment as small as possible. Therefore, the aim is to avoid 

work-related illnesses, injuries to persons and accidents as well as 

damage to the environment. Another goal is to further increase 

energy efficiency and achieve a lasting reduction in energy 

demand. 

An integrated management system has been developed and 

introduced in order to control and support the relevant activities; 

this system meets the requirements of the following standards: 

 Quality management in accordance with DIN EN ISO 

9001, 

 Occupational health and safety management in 

accordance with DIN ISO 45001, 

 Environmental management in accordance with DIN EN 

ISO 14001, 

 Energy management in accordance with DIN EN ISO 

50001. 

In addition, the management system meets the standards required 

of a technical safety management system in accordance with the 

DVGW Code of Practice G 1000. The conformity of the integrated 

management system with the standards is regularly reviewed by 

accredited certification bodies. 

The main impacts on the environment are in the areas of air 

pollutants, greenhouse gases and the handling of water pollutants. 

The gas transport compressor stations operated in the VGT Group 

are subject to the requirements of the German Greenhouse Gas 

Emissions Trading Act (TEHG). Well-established processes 

ensure that the requirements of the TEHG are implemented. This 

is confirmed at regular intervals by accredited environmental 

auditors. 

A company-appointed officer for water protection and waste 

management regularly monitors all plant sites and advises and 

supports those responsible on site in all questions regarding 

environmental requirements. The appointment of a waste 

management officer is voluntary although, on average, only some 

1.9 kt of hazardous and 2.1 kt of non-hazardous waste are 

produced every year throughout Germany. 

Important environmental data in the VGT Group are: 

 CO emissions: 0.25 kt4 

 NOx emissions: 0.48 kt4 

 CO2 emissions: 437 kt5 

 Energy consumption - gas: 2.6 TWh6 

 Energy consumption - electricity: 64.9 GWh6 

In addition, approx. 0.6 dam³ of liquid fuels (vehicles and 

emergency/alternative power generation) are consumed. 

There were no relevant environmental incidents in 2020. 

                                                                 
4 Report for the year 2016 to the monitoring authorities in accordance with 

the 11th Federal Emission Control Act (BImSchV)  next report year is 
2020. 

5 Total plants subject to emissions trading under TEHG for the year 2019. 
6 Consumption of he compressor stations and manned locations in the year 

2019. 
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Employees 

At the end of 2020, the VGT Group had 1,494 employees, exclud-

ing management and apprentices. The Group trains apprentices 

for technical and administrative occupations at eight locations in 

North Rhine-Westphalia (Essen and Ummeln), Lower Saxony 

(Krummhörn), Bavaria (Rimpar, Waidhaus and Wildenranna), 

Hesse (Gernsheim) und Rhineland Palatinate (Mittelbrunn). In 

addition, since 2016, a large part of the technical training for Thys-

sengas GmbH has been carried out in the training workshop at the 

Altenessen site; at the end of 2020 this involved a total of nine 

apprentices of Thyssengas GmbH.  

In the VGT Group, the collective wage agreement and various 

works agreements and policies basically set the framework for the 

employment conditions of the employees  irrespective of criteria 

such as gender, race or religion. In this connection, very close 

cooperation with the codetermination bodies is a matter of course. 

The aim is to create working conditions and workplaces that both 

satisfy the requirements of the field of work and protect the health 

of the employees. The subject of occupational health and safety, in 

particular the avoidance of accidents at work, has high priority. 

This is evidenced by the many training courses, information mate-

rials and events on this subject as well as by an occupational 

health and safety documentation system that is intensively used. 

For example, an extensive training programme has been running 

since 2019 to help employees in technical occupations heighten 

their personal safety awareness and reduce unsafe decisions and 

behaviour. In addition, as part of health management, the VGT 

Group offers its employees many benefits every year, such as free 

cancer screening, dietary advice and fitness checks. Height-

adjustable desks are also standard in the offices. 

In order to enable its employees to reconcile their work and family 

commitments, the VGT Group offers its employees various work-

ing time models providing varying degrees of flexibility and num-

bers of working hours. This provides a good combination of flexibil-

ity and planning reliability so employees can cope with the 

demands of both parts of their lives. These working time models 

are supplemented, where possible, by alternatives to workplaces 

on the company premises (home offices). 

Furthermore, the VGT Group offers employees family caregiver 

leave models if needed. Employees can also use the counselling 

services of an external provider if they need help on the subject of 

caregiving.  

Remuneration depends on the relevant position and its evaluation. 

ties that the job involves is systemically determined on the basis of 

qualitative requirement features and the job is then assigned to the 

pay groups of the applicable collective pay agreement or to the 

pay classification system for employees outside the collective pay 

agreement. 

The VGT Group offers a comprehensive further training pro-

gramme to encourage lifelong learning  both with regard to pro-

fessional qualifications and to social skills. This programme is 

supplemented by various Human Resources development mod-

ules specially designed for various target groups in the company 

and supporting different career paths. 

In view of the pandemic in 2020, wherever possible and depending 

on the infection rates at the time, employees were told to work 

from home. Meetings, training courses etc. were held virtually or, if 

presence was required, only under tight restrictions. In addition, 

employees were helped to deal with the sometimes difficult situa-

tion through offers such as digital childcare or digital sports les-

sons, as well as options offering advice on topics such as leading 

people from a distance, working from home with a child or working 

in isolation. 

Social engagement 

VGT is aware of its corporate social responsibility. For this reason, 

OGE has already been running its apprentice training facility in the 

Altenessen district of Essen for more than 80 years. Every year, 

this facility trains young people in technical occupations. 

Commerical apprenticeships are offered at the company's three 

locations in Essen. This offering is supplemented by 

apprenticeships for young people in technical occupations at 

seven sites throughout Germany. At the end of 2020, the company 

ermployed a total of 76 technical and commercial apprentices. 

The VGT Group attaches great importance to the subject of 

integration. In 2016, OGE provided four additional technical 

apprenticeships for refugees from Syria and Iran. In both 2017 and 

2019, another two apprenticeships were created in order to 

continue to support this programme and operate it over the long 

term. This engagement will be continued in 2021. 

Through the annual "Last Few Cents/Few Euros Campaign", the 

VGT Group and its employees support numerous charity projects. 

The employees' net monthly salaries can be rounded down not 

only to full euros, but also to five or 10 euros, and the difference 

donated. The good causes supported in 2020 included the 

"Mama/Papa hat Krebs" cancer charity in Kaiserslautern, "mudra - 

Alternative Jugend- und Drogenhilfe" youth welfare and drug 

assistance charity in Nuremberg and Johanniter Sternstunden 

organised by Johanniter Unfallhilfe, which is a last-wish 

programme for the terminally ill. The "Last Few Cents/Few Euros 

Campaign" has been running since 2007. Roughly half of the 

workforce has joined in and donates the net cent/euro amounts 

from their monthly salaries to charitable causes. These cents and 

euros are collected and topped up by the company at the end of 

the year. S  90,000 in donations has been raised since 2010. 

It helps organisations from different areas to continue their work 

and makes wide-ranging social engagement possible. 

Furthermore, in view of the COVID-19 pandemic and to protect the 

employees' health, it was decided not to hold the traditional 
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Christmas party in 2020. Instead under the motto "Donations 

instead of parties   35,000 was 

donated to various charitable associations and organisations, 

whose work was made more difficult by the Corona restrictions. 

Compliance 

Compliance has top priority in the VGT Group. Compliance with 

law, regulations and internal policies is regarded as a matter of 

course and is part of the corporate culture. The subject of 

compliance has gained considerably in importance in recent years. 

The reasons for this are, on the one hand, the ever-greater 

complexity of the statutory and regulatory framework. On the other 

hand, compliance subjects are nowadays increasingly the focus of 

public interest. The reputation and economic success of a 

company can be considerably damaged by compliance violations. 

Therefore, nowadays, a risk-focused and preventive compliance 

strategy is more important than ever. For this reason, it is the 

Groups's declared aim to make compliance with external and 

internal rules and regulations a self-evident part of the thinking and 

actions of all bodies, managers and employees. 

The main points are laid down in a binding Code of Conduct and 

supplementary internal policies and guidelines. In particular, the 

following topics are described there: 

 Anti-corruption / fraud prevention 

 Equal treatment in accordance with EnWG 

 Anti-trust law  

 Data protection 

 Insider law 

 Information security 

The workforce of the VGT Group receives regular information and 

training on these topics and the resulting requirements for 

employees, in particular through Intranet tips and e-learning 

programs. 

The OGE Compliance Office coordinates major compliance 

activities of the Group and handles the relevant compliance topics. 

In addition, the Compliance Office is available to all managers and 

employees as the central contact and advisor on all compliance 

questions. 

The Code of Conduct that has been rolled out throughout the 

Group conveys the key principles and rules for lawful and 

responsible conduct. It is the duty of all employees to live the 

values and rules that are detailed in this Code of Conduct and in 

the company policies and to use them as a benchmark for their 

actions.  

The Code of Conduct lays down in particular requirements for 

dealing with business partners, government bodies and other third 

parties, for handling confidential information and for dealing 

responsibly with the property and resources of the company and, 

where necessary, refers to explicit rules in other policies. 

A whistleblower hotline has been set up on which information can 

be given on violations of the rules in the VGT Group, in particular 

with respect to corruption, fraud, anti-trust law and infringements of 

the Code of Conduct. The information received by the Compliance 

Office is examined according to clearly defined responsibilities and 

processes while maintaining strict confidentiality. 

VGT has committed to taking systematic action against any form of 

corruption. The aim of the internal anti-corruption policy is to lay 

down clear rules and responsibilities through which cases of cor-

ruption are prevented in good time and to pursue any such cases 

in a rigorous and consistent manner. In addition, internal training 

courses are to heighten the awareness of all employees of the 

risks of corruption. 

Features of the internal control system 

The Group has a uniform accounting and reporting policy for the 

consolidated financial statement. This includes a description of the 

accounting and measurement methods to be applied in accord-

ance with IFRS. Furthermore, there is a binding balance-sheet 

closing calendar. 

In conjunction with the closing processes, additional qualitative 

and quantitative information relevant to accounting and the prepa-

ration of financial statements is compiled. Furthermore, dedicated 

quality assurance processes are in place for all relevant depart-

ments to discuss and ensure the completeness of relevant infor-

mation on a regular basis.  

The consolidated financial statements of the VGT Group are pre-

pared using SAP consolidation software in a multi-stage process. 

The ongoing accounting and annual financial statement prepara-

tion processes are divided into discrete functional steps. Automat-

ed or manual controls are integrated into each step. Defined or-

ganisational procedures ensure that all transactions and the 

preparation of the consolidated financial statements and annual 

financial statements are recorded on an accrual basis, processed 

and documented in a complete, timely and accurate manner. In 

addition, quality is assured using the four-eye principle. 

The results of this quality-assured process, which is used for the 

preparation of quarterly and annual financial statements as well as 

for planning at regular intervals, are the basis of internal manage-

ment reports, which are used for (Group) management purposes. 

Key financial performance indicators applied in this context are 

transport revenues, EBITDA and net debt-asset ratio. 

Report on opportunities and risks 

companies. 

In its business operations, the Group is exposed to a large number 

of risks connected with its activities. In line with the requirements 

of the Corporate Sector Control and Transparency Act (KonTraG), 

the aim of the Group's internal risk management system is to use a 

management and control system to identify and record risks which 

might threaten the continued existence of the company and, if 

necessary, to take appropriate counteraction. 
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requirements are met. Effects that give rise to possible third-party 

claims are adequately covered by insurance. Above and beyond 

the requirements of certification, from time to time OGE uses 

external consultants to review the threat posed by risks in the IT 

environment. Such a test was last performed in the reporting year. 

Transport business operation: 

To ensure fault-free operation of the transport business, OGE 

employs high quality standards and sophisticated quality assur-

ance concepts. Nevertheless, errors and resultant claims for com-

pensation by customers cannot be entirely excluded.  

Due to the regulatory account system, terminations of long-term 

capacity bookings only lead to temporary declines in revenues. 

Resulting revenue shortfalls in comparison to the approved reve-

nue cap are recognised in the so-called regulatory account, bear 

interest and are balanced out through an adjustment of the calen-

dar-year revenue cap in future financial years. There is therefore 

no sustained risk from fluctuations in demand. The syndicated 

credit line also minimises the liquidity risk. 

Financial risks 

In the normal course of business, the Group is exposed to various 

financial risks: market risks (covering foreign exchange risks, 

interest-related risks due to changes in the fair value, interest-

related cash flow risks and market price risks), credit risks and 

liquidity risks. The overarching Group risk management focuses on 

unforeseeable developments in the financial markets and its aim is 

situation. The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge 

certain risks.

Risk management is performed decentrally both by the Finance 

department of the service provider OGE and by the Investment 

Controlling department of the shareholders. Financial risks are 

identified, assessed and hedged in close cooperation with the 

transactions in foreign currency as well as the only occasional 

raising and securing of loans, the currency risks, interest rate risks 

and credit risks are handled and the use of derivative and non-

derivative financial instruments is agreed on a case-by-case basis 

with the relevant bodies of the company affected. 

Foreign currency risks may largely arise from procurement trans-

actions with business partners outside the eurozone. When such 

non-euro-based procurement transactions are conducted, foreign 

currency forwards are used to hedge the foreign currency risk. Due 

to the very limited volume of transactions in foreign currency, the 

Group is currently only exposed to an insignificant foreign currency 

risk. 

-term interest-

bearing liabilities. The liabilities with floating interest rates expose 

the Group to interest-related cash flow risks which are partly offset 

by bank balances with floating interest rates. The liabilities with 

fixed interest rates result in an interest-related risk arising from 

changes in the fair value. 

The long-term focus of the business model basically means meet-

ing a high proportion of financing requirements at fixed interest 

rates. In the Management's opinion, the Group therefore has an 

interest risk from long-term interest-bearing liabilities in addition to 

the refinancing risk fundamentally existing on expiry of loans. The 

liabilities with fixed interest rates basically give rise to a risk of 

higher financing costs when refinancing has to be performed in 

future. 

In the Management's opinion, credit risks in the Group result from 

cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and 

deposits at banks and financial institutions as well as from the 

utilisation of credit facilities by customers involving outstanding 

receivables and transactions performed. In the financing area, the 

Group only works with banks with an independent rating given by 

the three big rating agencies. For cash investments, the rating 

must be at least "BBB+" to "A-

 -

available). The ratings of all banks as well as other indicators of 

credit standing (such as current prices of credit default swaps) are 

continuously monitored. 

The Group generates the majority of its revenues from the market-

ing of transport capacities with a small number of key accounts. 

Key accounts are reviewed in regular credit assessments, using 

credit ratings from recognised credit agencies. 

As long as the Group meets its duty of diligence in the general 

credit assessment of its customers, payment defaults of individual 

customers are balanced out as part of the regulated tarification. 

Therefore, the credit risk from key accounts is only a temporary 

phenomenon. 

In the past, there have been no significant payment defaults. The 

Management is also not expecting any defaults in future as a result 

of non-performance by these business partners. 

The cash flow forecasts are prepared centrally for every major 

operating company and combined into a Group forecast. The 

Management monitors the rolling advance planning of the Group's 

liquidity reserve to ensure that sufficient liquidity is available to 

cover operational requirements and that unutilised credit facilities 

provide enough flexibility at all times. Such forecasts take into 

account the Group financing plans, compliance with loan agree-

ments, the meeting of internal target balance sheet figures as well 

as, where applicable, external statutory or official requirements. 
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Disclosures in accordance with section 315, 
para.  2 no. 1 HGB 

There are foreign exchange risks for the Group from procurement 

transactions with business partners outside the eurozone. If re-

quired, derivative financial instruments are concluded exclusively 

for hedging purposes. Due to the very limited volume of transac-

tions in foreign currency, the Group is currently only exposed to an 

insignificant foreign currency risk. 

As of 31 December 2020, interest rate risks due to market interest 

rate fluctuations of the Euribor from floating-rate loans at the pro-

portionately consolidated Group company, TENP, in the amount of 

 12.5 million (nominal amount) and the proportionately consoli-

 30.0 million 

(nominal amount) are hedged by swap agreements as part of 

hedging relationships. These interest swaps are microhedges, 

which are given prospective effectiveness through matched maturi-

ties and volumes. 

Opportunities  

The main opportunities are through additional increases in effi-

ciency compared with the approved revenue cap. However, due to 

the regulatory framework these are only of a temporary nature. 

Moreover, the regulatory framework may change, providing further 

opportunities and risks for the Group. 

The risk of higher expansion obligations due to changes in the 

network development plan also presents, on the other hand, an 

opportunity for higher returns from additional investments. 

Overal l  assessment of opportunity and risk  
situation 

In summary and as in the previous year, the Board of Management 

sees no risks threatening the continued existence of the company 

as at the reporting date and for the forecast period and considers 

the Group's risk-bearing capability to be fully ensured. 

Expected development 

According to the German Council of Economic Experts' assess-

ment of the overall economic situation in Germany, the Corona 

pandemic led to the sharpest slump in economic output in a single 

quarter since the start of quarterly national accounts in 1970. 

Against this backdrop, the Council of Economic Experts forecasts 

recovery in 2021, accompanied by growth of 3.7 %. 

With effect from 1 January 2021, OGE adjusted the uniform 

transport tariffs for entry and exit. As a result, entry and exit fees 

are some 7.4 % lower in the Net Connect Germany market area 

and approx. 1.2 % lower in the GASPOOL market area than in 

2019. In contrast to previous years, the network fees will only be 

applied from 1 January 2021 to 1 October 2021. On the basis of 

the BNetzA's REGENT stipulation, starting from 1 October 2021 

uniform fees will be charged for the new joint market area Trading 

Hub Europe (THE). OGE published the network fees on 

28 September 2020. This results in around 1 % higher fees in the 

new market area, THE, compared with the current market area Net 

Connect Germany and roughly 14 % higher fees compared with 

the current market area GASPOOL. 

Overall, the Board of Management is expecting transport revenues 

in 2021 to be slightly lower than in 2020. 

Revenues and changes in work in progress of the services busi-

ness are expected to be well below those in the 2020 financial 

year. The cost of materials is forecast to be on a par with the 2020 

financial year. 

Much lower interest expense is expected in the financial result. 

Owing to the high ongoing investment activity compared with the 

reporting year, depreciation is forecast to be much higher and 

income from equity investments is expected to be well above the 

prior-year figure. 

In view of the above-mentioned effects, the Board of Management 

anticipates that net income for 2021 will be well below the figure 

for the 2020 financial year.  

Investments continue to be largely based on measures under the 

Network Development Plan, extensive replacement investments 

and injections of equity into pipeline companies, although they are 

forecast to be well below the level of the reporting year. 

After VGT had issued two bonds in 2019 for financing purposes, in 

2020, a maturing bond was repaid with existing funds, resulting in 

a strongly negative cash flow for 2020. In 2021, cash flow is ex-

pected to be significantly above the level of the previous year. In 

summary, the Board of Management believes that the Company's 

liquidity situation will be stable and secure. 

In the field of occupational safety, the Board of Management

is to continue to keep the number of work-related accidents, as 

measured by TRIFcomb, at a low level and to further develop the 

safety culture. In order to achieve this, appropriate measures have 

been either put in place or continued. 





2 
Vier Gas Transport GmbH  Consolidated Financial Statements 2020 

Contents 
Balance Sheet .................................................................................................................................................................................................. 4 

Income Statement ............................................................................................................................................................................................. 5 

Statement of Comprehensive Income...............................................................................................................................................................5

Statement of Changes in Equity ....................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Cash Flow Statement ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 7 

1 Basic Information ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies .............................................................................................................................................. 8 

2.1 Basis of presentation ..................................................................................................................................................................... 8 
2.2 Effects of new accounting standards ............................................................................................................................................. 9 
2.3 Consolidation policies and scope of consolidation ........................................................................................................................ 9 
2.4 Acquisition and establishment of companies ............................................................................................................................... 11 
2.5 Foreign currency translation ........................................................................................................................................................ 11 
2.6 Goodwill ...................................................................................................................................................................................... 11 
2.7 Intangible assets ......................................................................................................................................................................... 11 
2.8 Research and development costs ............................................................................................................................................... 12 
2.9 Property, plant and equipment .................................................................................................................................................... 12 
2.10 Impairment .................................................................................................................................................................................. 12 
2.11 Financial instruments .................................................................................................................................................................. 13 
2.12 Inventories................................................................................................................................................................................... 15 
2.13 Receivables and other assets ..................................................................................................................................................... 15 
2.14 Liquid funds ................................................................................................................................................................................. 15 
2.15 Borrowing costs ........................................................................................................................................................................... 15 
2.16 Income taxes ............................................................................................................................................................................... 15 
2.17 Employee benefits ....................................................................................................................................................................... 16 
2.18 Provisions.................................................................................................................................................................................... 17 
2.19 Revenue from contracts with customers ..................................................................................................................................... 17 
2.20 Leases ........................................................................................................................................................................................ 18

2.21 Cash flow statement .................................................................................................................................................................... 19 
2.22 Estimates and assumptions as well as judgements in the application of accounting policies...................................................... 19

2.23 Changes in accounting policy ...................................................................................................................................................... 19 
3 Financial Risk Management .................................................................................................................................................................... 19 

3.1 Financial risk factors.................................................................................................................................................................... 19 
3.2 Capital management ................................................................................................................................................................... 22 

4 Information on the Balance Sheet............................................................................................................................................................22

4.1 Additional disclosures on financial instruments ........................................................................................................................... 22 
4.2 Goodwill and intangible assets .................................................................................................................................................... 24 
4.3 Property, plant and equipment .................................................................................................................................................... 26 
4.4 Financial assets .......................................................................................................................................................................... 27 
4.5 Non-current receivables and assets ............................................................................................................................................ 29 
4.6 Inventories................................................................................................................................................................................... 29 
4.7 Trade receivables and other current receivables ......................................................................................................................... 29 



3 
 

4.8 Liquid funds ................................................................................................................................................................................. 29 
4.9 Equity .......................................................................................................................................................................................... 29 
4.10 Deferred taxes ............................................................................................................................................................................. 30 
4.11 Provisions for pensions and similar obligations ........................................................................................................................... 30 
4.12 Other provisions.......................................................................................................................................................................... 33

4.13 Liabilities ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 34 
5 Information on the Income Statement ...................................................................................................................................................... 34 

5.1 Revenues .................................................................................................................................................................................... 34 
5.2 Own work capitalised .................................................................................................................................................................. 35 
5.3 Other operating income............................................................................................................................................................... 35

5.4 Cost of materials ......................................................................................................................................................................... 35 
5.5 Personnel costs ........................................................................................................................................................................... 35 
5.6 Other operating expenses ........................................................................................................................................................... 36 
5.7 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment charges ................................................................................................................... 36 
5.8 Financial result ............................................................................................................................................................................ 36 
5.9 Income taxes ............................................................................................................................................................................... 36 

6 Other Information ..................................................................................................................................................................................... 37 

6.1 Information on the Cash Flow Statement .................................................................................................................................... 37 
6.2 Contingencies ............................................................................................................................................................................. 37 
6.3 Other financial obligations ........................................................................................................................................................... 38 
6.4 Leases ........................................................................................................................................................................................ 38

6.5 Segment reporting ....................................................................................................................................................................... 38 
6.6 Business transactions with related parties .................................................................................................................................. 39 
6.7 Events after the balance sheet date ............................................................................................................................................ 39 
6.8  .......................................................................................................................................................... 39 
6.9 Management ............................................................................................................................................................................... 40 

7 List of Shareholdings as of 31 December 2020 ....................................................................................................................................... 41 

 











8 
Vier Gas Transport GmbH  Consolidated Financial Statements 2020 

 

    

 

 

1 Basic Information 

shareholder is Vier Gas Services GmbH & Co. KG , Essen. 

VGS is therefore the ultimate domestic parent company of the 

Group and in principle obliged to prepare consolidated financial 

statements. However, since Vier Gas Holdings S.à r.l. ( VGH ), 

Luxembourg, publishes consolidated financial statements and a 

Group management report as the highest European parent com-

pany in the Group, in accordance with Section 291 HGB (German 

Commercial Code) VGS is exempt from preparing consolidated 

financial statements and a Group management report. VGS is 

invoking this exemption. VGT is a capital market-oriented corpora-

tion within the meaning of Section 264d HGB. As capital market-

oriented parent company domiciled in Germany, VGT is obliged to 

prepare consolidated financial statements pursuant to Sec-

tion 315e of the German Commercial Code (HGB). 

The Company is registered under HRB 24299 in the commercial 

register of the Essen local court. 

The object of the Company is to acquire, hold and manage as well 

as sell equity investments in companies or their assets and every 

action or measure connected therewith and the provision of ser-

vices of any nature for its subsidiaries, including but not limited to 

the provision of financial services. 

The business operations of the Group are conducted by Open Grid 

of a gas transmission 

network operator and is subject to supervision by the Federal 

Network Agency (BNetzA), the German regulatory authority. Fur-

thermore, OGE provides services for the gas industry. 

The financial year is the calendar year. 

On 15 March 2021, these consolidated financial statements were 

approved by the Management for publication. 

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

2.1 Basis of presentation 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in 

accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards 

(IFRS) as adopted by the European Union (EU), the interpretations 

of the International Financial Reporting Standards Interpretations 

Committee (IFRS IC), the interpretations of the International Ac-

counting Standards Board (IASB) as well as the commercial provi-

sions to be applied in accordance with Section 315e (1) HGB. 

The consolidated financial statements of the VGT Group are gen-

erally prepared based on historical cost, with the exception of the 

financial assets recognised at fair value through other comprehen-

sive income as well as financial assets and liabilities (including 

derivative financial instruments) recognised at fair value through 

profit or loss.

The preparation of IFRS consolidated financial statements requires 

management to make estimates. Furthermore, the application of 

Group-wide accounting policies requires management assess-

ments to be made. 

consolidated balance sheet has been prepared using a classified 

balance sheet structure. Assets and liabilities are classified as 

current if they are expected to be realised or are due to be settled 

or are to be sold within twelve months of the reporting date or 

within the normal business cycle of the Group. 

The consolidated income statement is classified using the nature-

of-expense method. 

Figures under 50 thousand euros are indicated in the tables by the 

insertion of a full stop. 
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(b) Joint Arrangements  

Companies which, in accordance with IFRS 11, have been classi-

fied as joint operations are, for the purposes of simplification, 

generally proportionately consolidated in line with the share of 

ownership interest, with the exception of expansion investments 

involving only one joint operator. These are recognised in full in the 

consolidated financial statements of that joint operator. 

All material transactions and balances between joint operations 

and other affiliated companies that are included in the consolidated 

financial statements of VGT are generally proportionately eliminat-

ed with the exception of internal revenues from the joint operations 

and the corresponding cost of materials of the joint operator. As 

the parties to the joint operation take its entire output, these items 

are fully eliminated where the share of ownership interest is the 

same as the share of the output purchased. In the event of differ-

ences between the share of ownership interest and the share of 

output purchased, which is the case in the VGT Group, only reve-

nues or cost of materials measured proportionately in the amount 

of the difference between the two percentage shares therefore 

remain in the consolidated financial statements. When applying 

this procedure, a transaction between the joint operation parties 

involved is assumed. If one party to the joint operation takes less 

output than the percentage share it would be due in relation to its 

share of ownership interest, according to this approach it is as-

sumed that a sale to the other party of the joint operation has 

taken place in the amount of the shortfall quantity   i.e. the differ-

ence between the share of output due to the party of the joint 

operation based on its ownership interest and the share of output it 

has actually taken. If a party to the joint operation takes more 

output than the percentage share it would be due in relation to its 

share of ownership interest, it is similarly assumed that a purchase 

from the other party to the joint operation has taken place in the 

amount of the excess quantity   i.e. the difference between the 

share of output actually taken and the share of output due to the 

party to the joint operation based on its ownership interest. In this 

fictive transaction it is also assumed that the purchase price is the 

same as the price at which the joint operation sells to the parties of 

the joint operation. As joint operations are included and transac-

tions between the Group and the joint operations generally propor-

tionately eliminated, as described, in line with ownership interest, 

whilst revenues from the joint operations and the corresponding 

cost of materials are fully eliminated where the share of ownership 

interest is the same as the share of the output purchased, receiva-

bles and/or liabilities which, from the Group point of view, have not 

led to revenues or cost of materials may have to be reported in the 

consolidated financial statements. As transactions between the 

joint operations and the parties thereto which lead to revenues of 

the joint operation are generally monthly and immediately cash-

effective, such receivables and/or liabilities - where existing at the 

reporting date - are normally not material compared with the oper-

ating receivables or liabilities as a whole reported in the 

consolidated financial statements. 

Despite the fact that joint operations are legally separate entities, 

the examination of other factors and circumstances leads to the 

conclusion that rights to their assets and obligations for their liabili-

ties exist as these companies provide their services exclusively for 

the joint operation parties. OGE is contractually bound to the other 

joint operators not only through the Articles of Association but also 

through consortium agreements. These agreements also form the 

basis for the classification of the joint arrangements as joint opera-

tions. Furthermore, the joint operations grant OGE and the other 

joint operators the use of their pipeline network under grant-of-use 

agreements. These pipeline networks are a vital prerequisite for 

operator on the current scale. 

The joint operations operate in a regulated business environment. 

As a result, there is a general business risk for these companies 

because of the uncertainty surrounding the development of the 

regulatory framework in Germany and Europe. However, as the 

joint operations do not apply for their own revenue caps under the 

incentive regulation, but lease their pipeline network under individ-

ual contracts to the joint operators, the risk is limited. 

In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 11, joint ventures are 

accounted for using the equity method. Gains or losses from the 

sale of the Group's own assets to joint ventures are recognised in 

the amount of the proportion of the gain or loss attributable to the 

interests of the other joint venturers. However, the full amount of 

any loss on such transactions is recognised immediately if the loss 

provides reliable evidence of a reduction in the net realisable value 

of assets to be sold or an impairment loss. 

The Group's shares of profits and losses of joint ventures which 

arise from the purchase of assets from a joint venture are not 

recognised by the Group until it resells the assets to a company 

not belonging to the Group. If a loss provides reliable evidence of a 

reduction in the net realisable value of assets to be purchased or 

an impairment loss, the Group's share of such losses is recognised 

immediately. 

Joint arrangements that are only of immaterial significance for 

giving a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position 

and profit or loss of the VGT Group are accounted for at cost in the 

consolidated financial statements. They are reported under finan-

cial assets. 

(c) Associates 

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant 

influence but does not have exclusive control. 

Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity method. 

Interests in associates accounted for using the equity method are 

reported on the balance sheet at cost, adjusted for changes in 

ell 

as any impairment charges. Any goodwill resulting from the acqui-
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events or changes in circumstances indicate that such assets may 

be impaired. 

Under IFRS, emission rights held under national and international 

emission-rights systems for the settlement of obligations are re-

ported as intang ble assets. Since emission rights are not depleted 

as part of the production process, they are reported as intang ble 

assets not subject to amortisation. Emission rights are capitalised 

at cost when issued for the respective reporting period as (partial) 

fulfilment of the notice of allocation from the national authorities 

responsible, or upon acquisition. 

The provision is measured at the carrying amount of the emission 

rights held or, in the case of a shortfall, at the current fair value of 

the emission rights needed. The expenses incurred for the recog-

nition of the provision are reported under cost of materials. 

 

2.8 Research and development costs 

In accordance with IAS 38.57 ff., research and development costs 

must be allocated to a research phase and a development phase. 

While expenditure on research is expensed as incurred, develop-

ment costs must be capitalised as an intangible asset if all of the 

general criteria for recognition specified in IAS 38, as well as cer-

tain other specific prerequisites, have been fulfilled. In the financial 

year, these criteria were fulfilled for internally generated software, 

which were capitalised accordingly. No research costs were in-

curred. 

 

2.9 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at acquisition 

or production cost and are generally depreciated over the 

expected useful lives of the components, using the straight-line 

method, unless a different method of depreciation is deemed more 

suitable in certain exceptional cases. The useful lives of the major 

components of property, plant and equipment are presented be-

low: 

 Buildings 25-50 years 

 Technical equipment, plant and machinery 10-40 years 

 Other equipment, fixtures, furniture and office equipment 

5-14 years 

The remaining carrying amounts and economic useful lives are 

reviewed at every reporting date and adjusted where necessary. 

Expenses related to scheduled maintenance work on large-scale 

plants are capitalised as a separate asset in the amount of the cost 

of the work and depreciated using the straight-line method over the 

period until the next maintenance work. The costs for the ex-

change of components are recognised as assets to the extent that 

a future additional benefit is expected. The carrying amount of the 

exchanged components is derecognised. The costs for mainte-

nance and repair work as part of normal business operations are 

recognised as an expense. 

Private investment subsidies do not reduce the acquisition and 

production costs of the respective assets; they are instead report-

ed on the balance sheet as deferred income. 

 

2.10 Impairment 

The impairment test referred to in IAS 36 is carried out for intangi-

ble assets and items of property, plant and equipment whenever 

events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset may be 

impaired. Goodwill and other intangible assets with an indefinite 

useful life are subject to an impairment review at least once a year. 

In accordance with IAS 36, the carrying amount of an asset is 

tested for impairment by comparing the carrying amount with the 

and its fair value less costs to sell. Should the carrying amount 

exceed the corresponding recoverable amount, an impairment loss 

equal to the difference between the carrying amount and the re-

coverable amount is recognised and reported in income under 

Depreciation and amortisation . 

If the reasons for previously recognised impairment losses no 

longer exist, such impairment losses are reversed by affecting net 

income for intangible assets - except goodwill - and for items of 

property, plant and equipment. A reversal shall not cause the 

carrying amount of an asset subject to amortisation or depreciation 

to exceed the amount that would have been determined, net of 

amortisation or depreciation, had no impairment loss been recog-

nised during the period. 

If the recoverable amount for an individual intang ble asset or an 

item of property, plant and equipment cannot be determined, the 

recoverable amount is determined for the smallest identifiable 

group of assets (cash-generating unit) to which the individual asset 

can be assigned. 

In a goodwill impairment test, the recoverable amount of the cash-

generating unit is compared with its carrying amount, including 

goodwill. The recoverable amount is the higher of the cash-

Measurement from the viewpoint of the fair value less costs to sell 

is performed using the discounted cash flow method, and accuracy 

is verified through the use of appropriate multipliers, to the extent 

available. In addition, market transactions or valuations prepared 

by third parties for comparable assets are used to the extent avail-

able. If needed, a calculation of value in use is also performed. 

Unlike fair value, the value in use is calculated from the viewpoint 

of management. In accordance with IAS 36, it is further ensured 

that restructuring expenses, as well as initial and subsequent 

capital investments (where those have not yet commenced), in 

particular, are not included in the valuation. 

If the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount, the good-

will allocated to that cash-generating unit is adjusted in the amount 

of this difference. 
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If the impairment thus identified exceeds the goodwill, the remain-

ing assets of the unit must be written down in proportion to their 

carrying amounts. Individual assets may be written down only if 

their respective carrying amounts do not fall below the highest of 

the following values as a result: 

 fair value less costs to sell  

 value in use or 

 zero. 

Any additional impairment loss that would otherwise have been 

allocated to the asset concerned must instead be allocated pro 

rata to the remaining assets of the unit. Impairment charges on the 

nd 

peri-

ods. 

VGT has elected to perform the annual testing of goodwill for 

impairment at the cash-generating unit level in the fourth quarter of 

each financial year. See section 4.2 for further details on the im-

pairment test. 

 

2.11 Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial 

asset of the one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument 

of another entity. The Group only recognises financial assets and 

liabilities when it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the 

financial instrument. Financial assets are derecognised when the 

contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assets extin-

guish or are transferred and the Group has transferred substantial-

ly all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset. A financial 

liability is derecognised only when it is extinguished, i.e. the obliga-

tion specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. 

Financial instruments 

At initial recognition, financial instruments are measured at fair 

value plus, in the case of all financial instruments not subsequently 

measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that 

are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial instru-

ment. In the case of financial instruments subsequently measured 

at fair value, the associated transaction costs are recognised in 

profit or loss. Financial instruments are classified according to the 

measurement categories of IFRS 9. 

With regard to the classification of financial assets, a difference is 

made between equity instruments and debt instruments as well as 

derivatives. 

The Group designates equity instruments not held for trading as 

measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. All 

changes in the fair value after deduction of deferred taxes are 

recognised in other comprehensive income. In the event of sale, 

cumulative gains or losses recognised in other comprehensive 

income are not reclassified to profit or loss. Dividends are present-

ed in the income statement within the financial result. In the past 

financial year, the Group did not hold any equity instruments for 

trading. 

Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value through 

profit or loss. All changes in the fair value are recognised at fair 

value through profit or loss. Special requirements apply to deriva-

tive financial instruments that are part of hedge accounting. For 

further information, we refer to the section on hedge accounting. 

The classification of debt instruments is based, on the one hand, 

on the business model for managing the financial assets (business 

model condition) and, on the other hand, on the contractual cash 

flow characteristics of the financial asset (cash flow condition). 

A difference is made between the following business models: 

 Held to collect contractual cash flows; 

 Held to collect contractual cash flows and to sell; and 

 Held for trading. 

The cash flow condition requires that the cash flows arise solely 

from payments of principal and interest. 

Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost (AmC) when the 

objective of the business model is to hold the assets in order to 

collect contractual cash flows and the cash flow condition is met. 

Debt instruments are measured at fair value through other com-

prehensive income (FVtOCI) when they meet the cash flow condi-

tion but are held both for collecting contractual cash flows and for 

selling. 

All other debt instruments that are not allocated to the at amortised 

cost or FVtOCI categories are measured at fair value through profit 

or loss (FVtPL). 

The Management designates the category of the financial assets 

at initial recognition. 

Non-derivative financial liabilities (including trade payables and 

bonds) within the scope of IFRS 9 are measured at amortised cost 

using the effective interest method. Initial measurement takes 

place at fair value, with transaction costs included in the meas-

urement. In subsequent periods, the residual carrying amount is 

adjusted for accretion of any premium and amortisation of any 

discount remaining until maturity. The premium/discount is recog-

nised in the financial result over the term. 

Derivative financial liabilities that are not part of a hedging relation-

ship und financial liabilities that meet the definition of held for 

trading are measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

Loss allowances for expected credit losses 

The Group recognises loss allowances for financial assets of the 

at amortised cost  category and for contract assets as defined by 

IFRS 15 in the amount of the expected losses. The amount of loss 

recognised and interest revenue are determined on the basis of 

the classification of the instrument in 3 stages. 

All assets are allocated to stage 1 at initial recognition. For these 

assets, the present value of the expected credit losses that result 

from all default events that are possible within the next twelve 
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months from the reporting date is recognised as an expense. 

Interest revenue is recognised on the basis of the gross carrying 

amounts, i.e. before recognition of the loss allowance. 

The measurement of credit risk at initial recognition takes into 

account the probability of default as well as the default rate of the 

relevant assets. Probability of default (PD) is assessed using 

external credit checks. 

The ratings take into account macroeconomic and forward-looking 

input factors. 

Stage 2 applies to all assets for which there is a significant in-

crease in the risk of default as at the reporting date compared with 

at the initial recognition date. The loss allowance is the present 

value of all expected losses over the remaining life of the asset. 

The calculation and recognition of interest revenue is the same as 

for stage 1. 

To assess whether the credit risk of an asset has increased signifi-

cantly since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of an 

expected default occurring as at the reporting date with the risk of 

a default occurring as at the date of initial recognition, using in 

particular the following information: 

 an actual or probable significant change in the external 

credit rating of a financial instrument, 

 significant increase in the risk of default of other financial 

instruments of the same debtor, and 

 past due information. 

Based on experience, the Group does not presume a significant 

increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 

30 days past due. 

The Group makes use of the simplified approach for measuring the 

loss allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables and 

contract assets. According to this simplified approach, all assets 

are allocated to stage 2 irrespective of credit quality. Allocation to 

stage 1 is not permitted for these assets. 

Assets are allocated to stage 3 if, in addition to a significant in-

crease in the risk of default as at the reporting date, there is also 

objective evidence of impairment. In this case, the loss allowance 

is also measured on the basis of the present value of the lifetime 

expected losses. However, interest revenue recognised is adjusted 

in the following periods in that interest revenue is calculated on the 

basis of the net carrying amount, i.e. after deduction of the loss 

allowance. 

The Group writes off financial assets in their entirety or a portion 

thereof if one or more events (a loss event) having an adverse 

impact on the expected future cash flows has occurred and there-

fore these financial assets are credit-impaired. Objective evidence 

of credit impairment may include evidence of financial difficulties of 

a customer or a group of customers such as default or delinquency 

in interest or principal payments or the increased probability of 

insolvency. 

The amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference 

between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of 

expected future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that 

have not been incurred)  discounted at the financial asset's origi-

nal effective interest rate. The amount of the loss is recognised in 

profit or loss. If a financial instrument has a variable interest rate, 

the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current 

effective interest rate specified under the contract. If, in a subse-

quent period, the amount of the impairment decreases and the 

decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the 

impairment was first recognised (such as an improvement in the 

debtor's credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised 

impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. 

In the case of debt instruments of the at amortised cost category 

and in the case of contract assets, the loss allowance is deducted 

from the relevant asset. 

In 2020, there was no objective evidence of impairment of financial 

assets in the VGT Group with the exception of trade receivables 

for which individual valuation adjustments had been made. 

Hedging relationships 

The instruments mainly used are foreign currency transactions as 

well as interest rate swaps. These are measured at fair value for 

both at initial recognition and in subsequent periods. 

The hedge accounting requirements of IFRS 9 cover in particular 

the documentation of the hedging relationship between the hedged 

item and the hedging instrument, the hedging strategy as well as 

the regular prospective measurement of effectiveness. The critical 

term match method is used for prospective measurement of effec-

tiveness. The hedge accounting is prospectively considered effec-

tive when the critical contractual terms of the hedged item and the 

hedging instrument match. 

If a derivative financial instrument qualifies as a cash flow hedge 

under IFRS 9, th

change in fair value is recognised in equity as a component of 

other comprehensive income. A risk premium is also taken into 

consideration. A reclassification into income is performed in the 

period in which the cash flows of the transaction being hedged 

affect income. The hedging result is reclassified to profit or loss 

immediately if it becomes probable that the hedged underlying 

transaction will no longer occur. For hedging instruments used to 

establish cash flow hedges, the change in fair value of the ineffec-

tive portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss to the extent 

required. 

In the context of cash flow hedges, changes in the fair value of 

derivative instruments that must be recognised in profit or loss are 

presented as other operating income or expenses. Gains and 

losses from interest-rate derivatives are netted for each contract 

and included in the interest result. 

Additional information on financial instruments is provided in sec-

tions 3 and 4.1. 
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2.12 Inventories 

Of the inventories, raw materials and supplies are generally meas-

ured at the lower of weighted average cost and net realisable 

value. The net realisable value is the estimated selling price 

achievable in the ordinary course of business less the necessary 

variable costs to sell. Inventory risks resulting from excess and 

obsolescence are provided for using appropriate valuation write-

downs. 

Work in progress is measured at production cost. In addition to 

production materials and wages, production costs include pro-rata 

material costs and production overheads based on normal capaci-

ty. The costs of general administration are not capitalised. The 

acquisition and production costs do not include any borrowing 

costs.

The gas inventories in the pipeline network are measured at ac-

quisition cost using the weighted average cost method. 

 

2.13 Receivables and other assets 

Receivables and other assets are initially measured at fair value, 

which generally approximates nominal value. They are subse-

quently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 

method. Valuation allowances, included in the reported net carry-

ing amount, are provided for identifiable individual risks. If the loss 

of a certain part of the receivables is probable, valuation allowanc-

es are provided to cover the expected loss. 

 

2.14 Liquid funds 

Liquid funds include cheques, cash on hand and bank balances as 

well as money market funds with an original maturity of less than 

twelve months. Liquid funds with an original maturity of less than 

three months are considered to be cash and cash equivalents, 

provided they are not restricted and are not subject to significant 

risks of fluctuation in value. Further information can be found in 

section 4.8.

 

2.15 Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs that arise in connection with the acquisition, con-

struction or production of a qualifying asset from the time of acqui-

sition or from the beginning of construction or production until its 

entry into service are capitalised and subsequently amortised 

alongside the related asset. Qualifying assets are assets which 

necessarily take more than twelve months to get ready for their 

intended use or sale. In the case of a specific financing arrange-

ment, the respective borrowing costs incurred for that particular 

arrangement during the period are used. For non-specific financing 

arrangements, a financing rate uniform within the Group of 1.8 % 

was applied (previous year: 2.1 %). Other borrowing costs are 

expensed. 

 

2.16 Income taxes 

Tax expense for the period consists of current and deferred taxes. 

Taxes are recognised in the income statement unless they relate 

to items which have been directly recognised within equity or other 

comprehensive income. In the latter case, the taxes are also rec-

ognised within equity or other comprehensive income. 

The current tax expense is calculated using the tax regulations 

applicable on the reporting date (or soon to apply) of the countries 

in which the Company and its subsidiaries operate and generate 

taxable income. The Management regularly reviews tax declara-

tions, above all with regard to issues subject to interpretation, and, 

when appropriate, establishes provisions based on the amounts 

which it expects will have to be paid to the tax authorities. 

Under IAS 12, Income Taxes , deferred taxes are recognised on 

temporary differences arising between the carrying amounts of 

assets and liabilities on the balance sheet and their tax bases 

(balance sheet liability method). Deferred tax assets and liabilities 

are recognised for temporary differences that will result in taxable 

or deductible amounts when taxable income is calculated for future 

periods, unless those differences are the result of the initial recog-

nition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business 

combination that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither pre-

tax profit/loss nor taxable profit (so-called initial differences). De-

ferred tax liabilities are also not recognised when they result from 

the first-time recognition of goodwill. IAS 12 further requires that 

deferred tax assets be recognised for unused tax loss carryfor-

wards and unused tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognised 

to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available 

against which the temporary differences, unused tax loss carryfor-

wards and unused tax credits can be utilised. Each of the corpo-

rate entities is assessed individually with regard to the probability 

of a positive tax result in future years. Any existing history of loss-

es is incorporated in this assessment. For those deferred tax 

assets to which these assumptions do not apply, the value of the 

deferred tax assets is reduced. 

Deferred tax liabilities caused by temporary differences associated 

with investments in subsidiaries and associates are recognised 

unless the timing of the reversal of such temporary differences can 

be controlled within the Group and it is probable that, owing to this 

control, the differences will in fact not be reversed in the foreseea-

ble future. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted 

or substantively enacted tax rates expected to be applicable for 

taxable income in the years in which temporary differences are 

expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax 

assets and liabilities of enacted or substantially enacted changes 

in tax rates and tax law is generally recognised in income. Equity is 

adjusted for deferred taxes that had previously been recognised 

directly in equity. The adjustment is generally made in the period in 
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which the legislation mandating the change is substantively enact-

ed. 

Deferred taxes for domestic companies are calculated using a total 

tax rate of 31.0 % as was the case in the previous year. This tax 

rate includes, in addition to the 15.0 % corporate income tax, the 

solidarity surcharge of 5.5 % on the corporate tax and the average 

trade tax rate of 15.0 % applicable to the Group. 

Deferred tax receivables and liabilities are netted against each 

other when a legally enforceable right to netting exists and when 

the deferred tax receivables and liabilities relate to income taxes 

levied by the same tax authority for either the same taxable entity 

or different taxable entities which intend to settle on a net basis. 

 

2.17 Employee benefits 

(a) Pension obligations 

Various pension plans exist in the Group. The plans are generally 

funded by payments to insurance companies or trust funds, the 

amounts paid being based on regularly updated actuarial calcula-

tions. 

The Group has both defined benefit plans and defined contribution 

plans: a defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which 

the Group pays fixed amounts to a company (fund) which does not 

belong to the Group. The Group has no legal or constructive obli-

gation to pay additional contributions if the fund does not hold 

sufficient assets to settle the pension entitlements of all employees 

arising from the current and prior financial years. A defined benefit 

plan is a plan which is not a defined contribution plan. 

Defined benefit plans typically fix an amount which the employees 

will receive on retirement and which normally depends on one or 

more factors (such as age, years of service and salary). 

To protect against insolvency and fund the employees' entitle-

ments under pension commitments and similar obligations, the 

Group as the trustor established a two-sided CTA trust relationship 

with Helaba Pension Trust e. V. (Helaba), Frankfurt am 

Main (trustee), under agreements dated 14 December/ 

21 December 2011 and as trustor transferred, as a precautionary 

measure, assets to the trustee. 

The trustee holds and administers the trust assets for the trustor in 

a fiduciary capacity ring-fenced and separate from the trust assets 

of other trustors and the trustee's own assets. 

The trust assets meet the requirements for being classified as plan 

assets. 

In accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benefits , the provision for 

defined benefit plans recognised on the balance sheet corre-

sponds to the present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) 

on the reporting date less the fair value of the plan assets. The 

DBO is calculated annually by an independent actuary using the 

projected unit credit method. This method takes into account not 

only the pension obligations known on the reporting date and 

acquired vested rights but also economic trend assumptions which 

are chosen according to realistic expectations. The assessment is 

based on the 2018 G mortality tables of Prof. Dr Klaus Heubeck 

which serve as a biometric basis for calculation. 

The present value of the DBO is calculated by discounting the 

expected future cash outflows using interest rates of corporate 

bonds with a very high rating. The corporate bonds are denomi-

nated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and have 

terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension 

liabilities. 

The expected return on plan assets is determined on the basis of 

the discount rate used to measure pension obligations. 

The remeasurement component, which is based on experience 

adjustments and changes in the actuarial assumptions, is recog-

nised directly within equity in other comprehensive income in the 

period in which they occur and thereafter reported under retained 

earnings. 

The employer service cost representing the additional benefits that 

employees earned under the benefit plan during the financial year 

is reported under personnel costs; net interest cost/income result-

ing from the net pension obligation is reported under the financial 

result. 

Past service cost is recognised immediately in income. 

With defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to 

public or private pension insurance plans on the basis of a statuto-

ry or contractual obligation or on a voluntary basis. The Group has 

no further payment obligations beyond the payment of the contri-

butions. The payments are expensed as incurred and reported 

under personnel costs. 

(b) Other post-employment benefits 

The Group grants some of its pensioners a post-employment 

benefit in the form of a gas allowance. An accounting method 

corresponding to that used for defined benefit plans is used to 

measure the gas allowances. 

(c) Termination benefits 

Termination benefits are paid when a Group company terminates 

date or when employees volunteer to terminate the employment 

contract in exchange for severance benefits. The Group recognis-

es severance benefits when it can be proved that it is obliged to 

terminate the employment of current employees according to a 

detailed formal plan which cannot be reversed, or if it can be prov-

en that it is obliged to make severance payments after voluntary 

termination of employment by employees. Benefits which are due 

more than twelve months after the reporting date are discounted to 

their present value. 

(d) Other long-term benefits 

The provisions for long-service anniversary benefits and part-time 

phased-retirement obligations were calculated in line with actuarial 
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principles, taking into account a reasonable discount rate, reason-

able salary increases and - if applicable to the relevant obligation  

reasonable pension increases and staff turnover rate. Measure-

ment was performed on the basis of the 2018 G mortality tables 

compiled by Prof. Dr Klaus Heubeck. 

The provisions for long-term working-time accounts are measured 

using the discount rate for the pension obligations. 

The plan assets resulting from the insolvency insurance to cover 

employee claims under part-time phased-retirement obligations 

and long-term working-time accounts are offset against the respec-

tive provisions. 

(e) Short-term benefits 

A provision based on estimates is established for performance-

related and company success-related bonus payments to employ-

ees. 

In addition, a provision is recognised in the consolidated financial 

statements in cases where a contractual obligation exists or where 

there is a constructive obligation resulting from past business 

practice. These cases mainly include vacation and short-term 

working time account provisions. These provisions are measured 

at the daily rates and/or the average hourly rate including social 

security contributions due. 

 

2.18 Provisions 

In accordance with IAS 

has a legal or constructive present obligation towards third parties 

as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be 

required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be 

made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured in 

accordance with IAS 37 at the best estimate of expenditure re-

quired to settle the present obligation, taking the probability of 

occurrence and the timing of settlement into account. The provi-

sion is recognised at the expected settlement amount. Long-term 

obligations are reported as liabilities at the present value of their 

expected settlement amounts if the interest rate effect (the differ-

ence between present value and repayment amount) resulting 

from discounting is material; future cost increases that are fore-

seeable on the balance sheet date and likely to occur must also be 

included in the measurement. Long-term obligations are discount-

ed at the market interest rate applicable as of the respective bal-

ance sheet date. The accretion amounts and the effects of chang-

es in interest rates are presented as part of the financial result. A 

reimbursement related to the provision that is virtually certain to be 

collected is capitalised as a separate asset. No offsetting within 

provisions is permitted. Advance payments remitted are deducted 

from the provisions. 

Changes in estimates arise in particular from deviations from 

original cost estimates, from changes to the maturity or the scope 

of the relevant obligation, and also as a result of the regular ad-

justment of the discount rate to current market interest rates. 

Where necessary, provisions for restructuring costs are recognised 

at the present value of the future outflows of resources. Provisions 

are recognised once a detailed restructuring plan has been decid-

ed on by management and publicly announced or communicated 

to the employees or their representatives. Only those expenses 

that are directly attributable to the restructuring measures are used 

in measuring the amount of the provision. Expenses associated 

with the future business operations are not taken into considera-

tion. 

 

2.19 Revenue from contracts with customers 

Revenue from the Transport business 

The Group's business operations consist largely of the regulated 

transport activities of the gas transmission system operations. 

Revenue from the transport contracts with customers is generally 

recognised at the time the performance obligation towards the 

customer is fulfilled. The performance obligation is considered to 

have been satisfied when the gas transport has been performed 

and the customer therefore has control over the gas. When the 

performance obligation has been satisfied, the transaction price 

allocated thereto is recognised as revenue. 

Revenue from the Other Services business 

In addition to the Transport business, the Group generates reve-

nue from services in the unregulated gas industry segment. These 

services comprise technical and commercial activities. 

The Group has long-term, time-based service contracts, under 

which the customer receives a benefit from the individual perfor-

mance steps at the time of performance. These service contracts 

are largely negotiated at fixed prices. The revenue is recognised in 

line with performance of the contract and the services are billed 

according to the contractually agreed payment schedule. 

In addition to providing services, the Group also performs long-

term gas industry construction projects for customers. These 

contracts consist both of a fixed price and cost-plus-fee agree-

ments. Due to the fact that the Group has no alternative use for the 

asset created and has a contractually enforceable right to payment 

for performance completed to date, these construction contracts 

are measured over time. The respective contracts do not contain 

any separately identifiable performance obligations which would 

make it possible to identify a performance obligation per contract. 

Therefore, allocation of the transaction price is not possible. The 

revenue from these gas industry projects is recognised according 

to progress towards satisfaction of the performance obligations. 

This is determined using the input-based cost-to-cost method and 

is the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed up 

to the reporting date relative to the estimated total contract costs. 

Using the cost-to-cost method gives the truest picture of revenue 

realisation for the fulfilment of a performance obligation over time 
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as the costs and therefore the percentage of completion can be 

reliably determined. 

Revenue recognition / accounting 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised net of sales 

taxes and less any rebates and discounts given as well as returns, 

and after elimination of intragroup transactions. 

Contracts with customers are recognised in the balance sheet 

under other receivables or liabilities as contract assets or contract 

liabilities as well as under trade receivables. In the contract assets 

line item, the entitlement to a consideration from a contract with a 

customer for goods and services already transferred to the cus-

tomer is presented net of any advance payments already received 

 or the unconditional entitlement thereto. If the advance payments 

received  or the unconditional entitlement thereto  exceed the 

entitlement to a consideration for goods and services already 

transferred to the customer, the resulting balance is recognised in 

the contract liabilities line item. A receivable is recognised when 

the entitlement to a consideration only depends on the passage of 

time. Impairments of contract assets and receivables are meas-

ured and recognised in accordance with IFRS 9. 

As IFRS 15 contains no specific requirements, expected losses 

from onerous contracts are not netted against the asset recog-

nised, but treated in accordance with IAS 37.5(g). This results in 

the presentation of a provision for expected losses in the amount 

of the unavoidable costs. 

In the case of contracts with a significant financing component, the 

Group adjusts the promised amounts of the compensation for the 

interest effect. If the time between the transfer of the good or 

service to the customer and payment by the customer is less than 

one year, no financing component in accordance with IFRS 15.63 

is recognised. At present, the Group has no contracts with a signif-

icant financing component. 

Generally, receivables from contracts with customers are billed in 

accordance with the contract terms with a payment period of up to 

30 days. 

Apart from the binding statutory warranty, the Group has no return, 

refund or guarantee obligations. According to IFRS 15.B31(a), 

statutory requirements do not constitute a separate performance 

obligation. 

Capitalised costs to fulfil or obtain a contract have not been recog-

nised. No additional costs to obtain contracts have been incurred 

that can be allocated directly to a performance obligation. Any 

costs incurred that would also have been incurred if a contract had 

not been concluded are recognised as expense. 

 

2.20 Leases 

Leases are accounted for when a contract exists that conveys the 

right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in 

exchange for consideration. 

Lessee 

In accordance with the provisions of IFRS 16, the Group accounts 

for leases as a lessee using the right-of-use approach. At the 

inception date leases are generally recognised in the balance 

sheet at their present value as an asset for the right-of-use and as 

a liability for the payment obligation entered into. The lease liability 

is measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, 

discounted using the incremental borrowing rate. To determine the 

incremental borrowing rate, reference interest rates for a period of 

up to 15 years were derived from indicative financing rates and 

market rates for VGT corporate bonds. The lease payments are 

separated into a principal and an interest portion using the effec-

tive interest method. The recognised right-of-use asset is meas-

ured at amortised cost. The right-of-use assets are depreciated on 

a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. 

The Group has not extended the scope of application of IFRS 16 

to intangible assets. Likewise, short-term leases and leases of low-

value assets are not accounted for on the basis of the right-of-use 

approach. Instead, these leases are recognised as an expense in 

the income statement over the term of the lease. In the Group, 

low-value leased items are all leased items whose value when new 

does not exceed  5,000. All leases that have a remaining lease 

term of less than 12 months are classified in the Group as short-

term leases and accounted for accordingly. 

In principle, for contracts that contain a lease component and one 

or more additional lease or non-lease components, the considera-

tion in the contract is allocated to each lease component on the 

basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and 

the aggregated stand-alone price of the non-lease components. If 

a separation of non-lease and lease components is not possible, 

these components are accounted for as one single lease compo-

nent. In the Group there are no variable lease payments that have 

not been included in the measurement of the lease liability. 

The term of the recognised leases corresponds to the non-

cancellable period of a lease together with the period covered by 

an option to extend the lease where that option is reasonably 

certain to be exercised and the period covered by an option to 

terminate the lease where that option is reasonably certain not to 

be exercised. Accordingly, the Group recognises the extension 

and termination options in the lease liabilities for leases with a 

fixed lease term. Contracts with an indefinite lease term are meas-

ured on the basis of the Group's five-year mid-term plan. Current 

knowledge is taken into account when determining the term of 

leases with extension or termination options. 



19 
 

Lessor 

Leases in which substantially all of the risks and rewards incident 

to ownership of the leased property remain with the lessor are 

classified as operating leases. In the case of an operating lease, 

the Group reports the leased item as an asset at amortised cost 

under property, plant and equipment. The lease payments re-

ceived in the financial year are recognised as income. The Group 

acts as lessor under operating leases to an insignificant extent. 

Subleases within the framework of operating leases were only 

concluded with subsidiaries not included in the Group to an insig-

nificant extent. 

No Group company is a lessor under a finance lease in accord-

ance with IFRS 16. 

 

2.21 Cash flow statement 

In accordance with IAS 

ed cash flow statement is classified by operating, investing and 

financing activities. Income taxes paid and refunded as well as 

dividends and interest received are classified as cash from operat-

ing activities. Dividends and interest paid are classified as cash 

from financing activities. The purchase prices paid and selling 

prices received in acquisitions and disposals of companies are 

reported, net of any cash and cash equivalents acquired (disposed 

of), under investing activities if the respective acquisition or dis-

posal results in a gain or loss of control. In the case of acquisitions 

and disposals that do not result in a gain or loss of control, the 

corresponding cash flows are reported under financing activities. 

 

2.22 Estimates and assumptions as well as 

judgements in the application of 

accounting policies 

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires 

management to make estimates and assumptions that may influ-

ence the application of accounting principles within the Group and 

affect the measurement and presentation of reported figures. 

Estimates are based on past experience and on additional 

knowledge obtained on transactions to be reported. Actual 

amounts may differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 

ongoing basis. Adjustments to accounting estimates are recog-

nised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the change 

affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and subse-

quent periods if both current and future periods are affected. 

Estimates are particularly necessary for the measurement of the 

value of property, plant and equipment and of intang ble assets, 

especially in connection with purchase price allocations, the 

recognition and measurement of deferred tax assets, the account-

ing treatment of provisions for pensions and other provisions, for 

impairment testing in accordance with IAS 36, as well as for the 

determination of the fair value of certain financial instruments. 

The underlying principles used for estimates in each of the rele-

vant topics are outlined in the respective sections. 

 

2.23 Changes in accounting policy 

In the 2020 financial year, there were no material changes in 

accounting policy. 

 

3 Financial Risk Management 

3.1 Financial risk factors 

In the normal course of business, the Group is exposed to various 

financial risks: (a) market risks (covering foreign currency risks and 

interest risks), (b) credit risks and (c) liquidity risks. The overarch-

ing Group risk management focuses on unforeseeable develop-

ments in the financial markets and its aim is to minimise the poten-

uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risks. 

Risk management is performed decentrally both by the Finance 

department of OGE, and by the Investment Controlling department 

of the shareholders. The Corporate Finance department identifies, 

assesses and hedges financial risks in close cooperation with the 

transactions in foreign currency as well as the only occasional 

raising and securing of loans, the currency risks, interest risks and 

credit risks are handled and the use of derivative and non-

derivative financial instruments is agreed on a case-by-case basis 

with the relevant bodies of the company affected. 

In the Group, hedge accounting in accordance with IFRS 9 is used 

for interest rate derivatives to hedge non-current liabilities as well 

as for currency derivatives. 

Cash flow hedges are used to protect against the risk arising from 

variable cash flows which result from loans, non-current liabilities 

and future payment obligations in foreign currency. Interest rate 

swaps and foreign currency swaps in particular are used to limit 

the risk resulting from changes in interest rates and exchange 

rates. 

(a) Market risk 

(i) Foreign currency risk  

Foreign currency risk may largely arise from procurement transac-

tions with business partners outside the euro zone. When such 

non-euro-based procurement transactions of a significant volume 

are conducted, foreign currency forwards and currency swaps are 

used to hedge the foreign currency risk. Owing to the very limited 

volume of transactions in foreign currency, the Group is currently 

only exposed to an insignificant foreign currency risk. There were 

no significant hedged procurement transactions in the 2020 finan-

cial year. 
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6.9 Management 

The following persons have been appointed to the Management and as representatives of the Company: 

Stephan Kamphues 

Chairman of the VGT Board of Management 

Hilko Cornelius Schomerus 

Managing Director, Macquarie Infrastructure & Real Assets 

Frankfurt am Main 

Laurent Fortino 

Senior Investment Manager, Infrastructure Division, ADIA 

Abu Dhabi/United Arab Emirates 

Lincoln Hillier Webb 

Executive Vice President, Infrastructure & Renewable Resources, British Columbia Investment Management Corp. 

Victoria, British Columbia/Canada 

Alexander Bögle 

Senior Investment Manager, Private Equity & Infrastructure, MEAG MUNICH ERGO Asset Management GmbH 

Munich 

Cord von Lewinski 

Managing Director, Macquarie Infrastructure & Real Assets 

Frankfurt am Main 

Richard W. Dinneny 

Senior Portfolio Manager, Infrastructure & Renewable Resources, British Columbia Investment Management Corp. 

Victoria, British Columbia/Canada, until 29 January 2021 

Timothy Keeling 

Senior Principal, Infrastructure & Renewable Resources, British Columbia Investment Management Corp. 

Victoria, British Columbia/Canada, from 30 January 2021 

Guy Lambert 

Head of Utilities, Infrastructure Division, ADIA 

Abu Dhabi/United Arab Emirates 

With the exception of Stephan Kamphues, the managing directors are not employees of the Company. 
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Hereinafter we present the key audit matter: 

Recoverability of goodwill 

   840.3 million (15.2% of total assets) is reported under the 
"Goodwill" balance sheet item in the consolidated financial statements of Vier Gas Transport 
GmbH, Essen. Goodwill is tested for impairment by the Company once a year or when there 
are indications of impairment to determine any possible need for write-downs. The impair-
ment test is carried out at the level of the cash-generating unit to which the relevant goodwill 
is allocated. The carrying amount of the cash-generating unit, including goodwill, is compared 
with the corresponding recoverable amount in the context of the impairment test. The recov-
erable amount is generally calculated on the basis of fair value less costs of disposal. The pre-
sent value of the future cash flows from the cash-generating unit normally serves as the basis 
of valuation. The present values are calculated using discounted cash flow models. For this 
purpose, the budget projections of the Group prepared by the executive directors form the 
starting point which are extrapolated based on assumptions about long-term regulatory devel-
opments. The discount rate used is the weighted average cost of capital for the cash-generat-
ing unit. 

The impairment test determined that no write-downs were necessary. 

The outcome of this valuation is dependent to a large extent on the estimates made by the ex-
ecutive directors with respect to the future cash inflows from the cash-generating unit, the dis-
count rate used, the rate of growth and other assumptions about the long-term margin devel-
opment and the development of the relevant regulatory factors, and is therefore subject to 
considerable uncertainty. Against this background and due to the highly complex nature of 
the measurement, this matter was of particular significance in the context of our audit. 

 As part of our audit, we assessed the method used for performing the impairment test and 
evaluated the calculation of the weighted average cost of capital, among other things. Further-
more, we satisfied ourselves as to the appropriateness of the future cash flows used in the 
measurement in particular by comparing this data with the budget projections and assessing 
the data on the basis of sector-specific and regulatory market expectations, and in the process 
of doing so, making use of the executive directors' explanations regarding key value drivers. In 
the knowledge that even relatively small changes in the discount rate applied can have a mate-
rial impact on the value of the entity calculated in this way, we focused our testing in particu-
lar on the parameters used to determine the discount rate applied, and verified the calculation 
model. We performed sensitivity analyses in order to reflect the uncertainty inherent in the 
projections. Taking into account the information available, we determined that the carrying 
amounts of the cash-generating unit, including the allocated goodwill, were adequately cov-
ered by the discounted future net cash inflows. Taking into consideration the information 
available, in our view the measurement parameters and assumptions used by the executive 
directors were properly derived for conducting impairment tests. 

 The Company's disclosures on impairment testing and on the "Goodwill" balance sheet item 
are contained in sections 2.6 and 4.2 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.







 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used by the executive directors and the 
reasonableness of estimates made by the executive directors and related disclosures. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the executive directors' use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to con-
tinue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements and in the group management report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to mod-
ify our respective audit opinions. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group 
to cease to be able to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial state-
ments, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements present 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that the consolidated financial statements 
give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and financial performance of 
the Group in compliance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the additional requirements of 
German commercial law pursuant to § 315e Abs. 1 HGB. 

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities 
or business activities within the Group to express audit opinions on the consolidated financial 
statements and on the group management report. We are responsible for the direction, super-
vision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit o-
pinions. 

 Evaluate the consistency of the group management report with the consolidated financial 
statements, its conformity with German law, and the view of the Group's position it provides.

 Perform audit procedures on the prospective information presented by the executive directors 
in the group management report. On the basis of sufficient appropriate audit evidence we eval-
uate, in particular, the significant assumptions used by the executive directors as a basis for the 
prospective information and evaluate the proper derivation of the prospective information 
from these assumptions. We do not express a separate audit opinion on the prospective infor-
mation and on the assumptions used as a basis. There is a substantial unavoidable risk that fu-
ture events will differ materially from the prospective information. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant defi-

ciencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with the 

relevant independence requirements, and communicate with them all relationships and other mat-

ters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, the re-

lated safeguards. 
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